








CONSENT 
AGENDA 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

73rd Session of the Eleventh Council 

A Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, February 21, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. by 
Council President Mike McGuiness. 

Invocation - Minister Kathalee James, Eastside Church of God, Pontiac Michigan 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

Moment of Silence 

Roll Call 

Members Present - William Carrington, KathaleeJames, Mike McGuinness(J3rett Nicholson, William 
Parker, Jr. and Melanie Rutherford · 

Mayor Greimel was present 
A quorum was announced. 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda ... 
Motion to approve the ageud~. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by 

Councilperson Parker. · · 

Ayes: Carrington, James, McGulllriess/~foholson, Parker and Rutherford 
No:None · ··· 

Motion Carried 

Consent Ag~nda ·. ·•.·. . .. ·. . .· . . .. 
23-69 · Resolutinn to approve the consent agenda for February 21, 2023. Moved by 
Councilperson Parker and second by Councilperson Rutherford. 

Whereas, the City Council has reY:ie,wed the:consent agenda for February 21, 2023. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RES0:11 VED that the City Council approves the consent agenda for 
February 21, 2023including Febr<lar:Y:16, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes. 

I 

Ayes: James, Mc:Gtii~ness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Councilman Mika! Goodman arrived at 6:09 p.m. 

Special Presentation 
Murphy Park Expansion Progress, Improvements 

Recognition of Elected Officials -None 

Agenda Address 
1. Blair McGowan addressed item #2 

1 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

Act No. 4 of the Public Acts ofMichigae of2011 (MCL 141.1501 et seq.), the Emergeecy 
Manager may remove a member for any reasoe as provided by Act No. 4 of the Public Acts of 
Michigan. 

(c) In the case of the termination of membership of any member of the city planning commission 
before the expiration of his their term, through resignation, removal or any other reason, the vacancy 
shall be filled by appointment by the mayor, subject to the approval by a majority vote of the 
members of the city council, for the unexpired term of the member whose membership has 
terminated, or, ie the e11ent of an appointment of an Emergeecy Maaager ueder the Local 
GoveremeRt aad School District Fiscal AcoouRtability Act, Act No. 4 of the Public Acts of Michigan 
of2011 (MCL 141.1501 et seq.), the Emergency Financial Manager shall fill the vacancy •Nith an 
appoiRtmeRt vt'ith no vote by the City Council required, as provided in state law. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford;Carrington, Goodman and James 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Motion to strike language from Otjlnance #3 (an Ordinanee Amendment to 
Ordinance 2-372 Clarifying Planning CommissfonBylaws) removing Sectfolil:-372 i. Moved by 
Councilperson Goodman and second by Councilperson Parker. 

2-372. Composition; terms. . 
(i) The service of curreet members ei:fatleity planning c9BHflission shall termiaate on JHee 30, 2011 

('.vhether their terms are e~lpired Of l:laeK~d,), replaced by the members appointed under this 
division on July 1, 2011. Notvt'ithstMfiing the.iefegoieg, st:tekearreRt members of the city 
plannieg commissioa:may apply for 8,ppQiRtmeRttothe ne•.v citypl~ning oommissioe created 
t:mder this divisioa. · · · · 

Ayes: Nicholson, Parl<et, Rutherford,Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No:None · 

1 

Motion Carried 

Councilman Brett Nicholson left the meeting at 7:05 pm, 

Motion to postpone for one week an Ordinance Amendment to Ordinance 2-372 
Clarifying Planning Commissiou·Bylaws. (Second Reading postponed from February 16, 2023 City 
Council Meeting).Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No:None · 
Motion Carried 

Motion to postpone for one week an Ordinance to Amend Appendix B of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Pontiac Amending Article 2, Section 2.103 - Zoning Map, to Change 
the Zoning Classifications for Specific parcels on Woodward Ave. (ZMA 22-011 for Lighthouse of 
Oaldand County at 46156 Woodward Ave.) Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 
Councilperson Carrington. 

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Parker 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

3 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

Resolutions 
City Clerk 
23-70 Resolution to approve a proposed budget amendment to transfer $15,000 in 
funding out of the General Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390-000 and transfer $15,000 into 
101-215-902-005 Public Notices. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson 
Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2022-23 budget on June 22, 2022 and; 

WHEREAS, 10,000 was allocated for General Fund GL Account 101-215-902.005 Public Notices in the 
FY 2022-23 budget and; 
WHEREAS, expenditures for publishing public notices in the newspaper between July 1, 2022 -
December 31, 2022 has exceeded $10,000 and; 
WHEREAS, without allocating additional funding the City wiUbe 1Jnable to publish public notices for 
public hearing and budget amendments as required by the City Charter and/or ordinances. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves the proposed budget 
amendment to transfer $15,000 in funding out of the General Fund Balance GL account 101-000-
390.000 and transfer $15,000 into 101-215-902.005 Public Notices. 

City Council 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker and Rutherford 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

23-71 Resolution to approve the ttppoint~ents of Linda Watson, Elizabeth Peete, Mattie 
Lasseigne, and Alternate Elick Shorter to the Board of Review. Move by Councilperson Rutherford 
and second by Councilperson Carrington. · 

WHEREAS, section 5.402 of the Pontiac City Charter.requires the City Council to appoint three electors 
of the City' annually' to the Board of Review before that Board's first meeting; and, 
WHEREAS, in addition to thecharterrequirement ofbei11g an elector, all members of the Board of 
Review must .attend and receive.trainillg prior to attending the first meeting; and, 
WHEREAS,LindaD.Watson, E1izal:>eth Peete, Mattie Lasseigne and alternate Elick Shorter have 
effectively served on the Board of Review and are generously willing to continue their service to the City 
of Pontiac; 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FUR:THER RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council appoints Linda D. 
Watson, Elizabeth Peete, Mattie Lasi;;eigne and alternate, Elick Shorter, to serve as members to the Board 
of Review. , 

::i 

Ayes: Goodman, .Tames, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

~ Resolution Calling for the Repeal of Michigan Public Act 436 of 2012. Moved by 
Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson Rutherford. Discussion. 

Motion to amend Resolution Calling for the Repeal of Michigan Public Act 436 of 
2012 by adding 436 after Public Act in paragraph 5. Moved by Councilperson McGuinness and 
second by Councilperson Goodman. 

Whereas, on February 1, 2023, House Bill 4065 was introduced in the Michigan House of 
Representatives, which would if enacted, repeal the entirety of Public Act 436; now, 

4 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

Ayes: McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman and James 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

23-72 Resolution Calling for the Repeal of Michigan Public Act 436 of 2012 as amended. 
Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson Rutherford. 

Whereas, the Local Financial Stability and Choice Act, Public Act 436 of 2012 ("P.A. 436"), was enacted 
to provide for the appointment of Emergency Managers to local municipalities and school districts 
experiencing financial distress; and 
Whereas, P.A. 436 authorizes an emergency manager to, among otherthings, amend a local government's 
budget; sell, lease, or assign assets; apply for state loans on the municipalities' behalf; suspend collecting 
bargaining agreements; modify or terminate existing contracts; exercise power over the local pension 
board; consolidate or eliminate departments of local government and decide whether to fill or create staff 
positions; irrespective of the local government's charters and law; and 
Whereas, these board powers conferred on an Emergency Manager, not subject to local review or control, 
had devastating financial consequences for many niunicipalities, including the>city of Pontiac; and 
Whereas, while under control of state-appointed Emergency managers, the Phoenh center debacle 
occurred, city assets were sold to various entities, andJ:>ontiac's residents were deprived of their right to 
challenge their government when Charter-mandated officeswereclisbanded; and 
Whereas, on February 1, 2023, House Bill 4065 was introduc~di.11the Michigan House of 
Representatives, which would if enacted,.repealthe entirety of Public Act 436; now, 
Therefore, Be It Resolved that the City of Pontiac calls for the repeal of Public Act 436, the so-called 
Local Financial Stability and Choice Act 436of 2012;.a,nd further 
Resolved, the City Council fully supports House ,Bill 4065 of.2023 and urges the Michigan Legislature to 
enact House Bill 4065, whichwoulo repeal PubllcAct 436. i 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker;.Rutherford, Carrington and Goodman 
No:None 
R~olution Passed 

Communications 
23-73 Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed budget amendment 
for Budget Year 2022-2023 for (;able Operations, Video and Microphones Systems in the amount of 
$27,564.45. Moved by Councilperson Rutherfoi;d and second by Councilperson Goodman . 

. 
WHEREAS City council appropriated, funds for the Cable Department to begin on July 1, 2022; and, 
WHEREAS, that appropriation assumed certain variables that did not come into being; and, 
WHEREAS, that appropriation did not include enough allocation for the purchase approved in FY 2022 
for City Council Chamber microphone system; and, 
WHEREAS, this budget amendment decreases the fund balance by $27,564.45; 
NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish 
in a newspaper the proposed budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2022-23 as requested by the 
Administration as given below: 

Increase the budget appropriation in the following GL accounts: 
231-291-977.014 Video Equipment $27,564.45 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

5 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

Economic Development 
23-74 Resolution to approve redevelopment liquor license for Sunset Island LLC located 
at 7 N. Saginaw. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac chooses to engage in PA 58, 1998, MCL 436.1521a(l)(b)(i) for the Issuance 
of New-On-Premises Development District License and establishment of Redevelopment Licenses in the 
Tax Increment Finance Authority Act (TIFA) District and under Part 3 of Public Act 57 of 2018. 
Whereas, Sunset Island LLC, Parcel 64-14-29-476-032-014, 7 N. Saginaw St., has made a petition for a 
Specially Designated Merchant ("SDM") and Class C, "Bistro" license and meets eligibility requirements 
for licensure issuance under MCL 436.152 la( 1 )(b )(i). 
Whereas, Sunset Island LLC, 7 N. Saginaw shall comply with the City pf Pontiac Ordinance 2366 to 
Allow for Redevelopment Liquor Licenses and Conditions for Issuance and operations of the Specially 
Designated Merchant ("SDM") and Class C, "Bistro" License l:Uld.MCL 436.1521a(l)(b)(i). 
Be It Resolved, that the petition for Specially Designated Merchant('•SJ)M") and Class C, "Bistro" 
License on behalf of the petitioner, Sunset Island LLC, 7N. Saginaw St,is hereby approved and City 
Council further recommends this application be considered for approval bythe Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 

Grants 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

23-75 Resolution to approve the pl'oposedbudget amendnient to increase budgeted 
revenues in the amount of $392,500 to account 208-000--53.2".'000 UWOCST, and appropriations in 
the amount of $135,000toaccount 208-756-701 .. 000 UWOCSl'Salariesand Wages, $18,500 to 
account 208-756-7 45-000 UWOCST Recreation.Supplies, $108.,SOO to account 208-756-779-020 
UWOCST Programming, $65,000 to account 208-l1:56-819-000 UWOCST Contractual Temp/PT 
Labor, $5,500 to account208-756-9.57:..002 UWOCSTTraining Expense, and $25,000 to account 
208-756-977-()()8 l)WOCST SpecialEquipment. Movedby Councilperson Rutherford and second by 
Councilperson Parker; 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded $392,500 from the United Way of Southeast Michigan Out 
of School Time Grant Program; and, 
WHEREAS, the grant award wm support youth,recreation programming and staff time; and, 
WHEREAS, the funds from the grant, will increase the budgeted revenue for the current fiscal year 
2022-2023 in the amount of $392,500:for grant income, and increase the appropriations in the 
amount of $392,500, representing grant expenditures. 
NOW THEREFORE, be itresolvedthat the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish the 
proposed budget amendmentfor the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget as requested by the Administration to 
increase budgeted revenues in the amount of $392,500 to account 208-000-532.000-UWOCST, and 
appropriations in the amount of $135,000 to account 208-756-702.000-UWOCST Salaries and Wages, 
$18,500 to account 208-756-745.000-UWOCST Recreation Supplies, $108,500 to account 208-756-
779.020-UWOCST Programming, $65,000 to account 208-756-819.000-UWOCST Contractual Temp/PT 
Labor, $5,500 to account 208-756-957.002-UWOCST Training Expense, and $25,000 to account 208-
756-977.008-UWOCST Special Equipment. 

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness and Parker 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

6 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

23-76 Resolution to approve the proposed budget amendment to increase budgeted 
revenues in the amount of$294,000 to account 212-000-532-000 OCSCMG Federal Grant Others, 
and appropriations in the amount of $150,000 to account 212-813-818-000 OCSCMG - Other 
Professional Services (Ruth Peterson Senior Center) and $144,000 to account 212-814-818-000 
OCSCMG - Other Professional Service (Bowen Senior Center) Moved by Councilperson Rutherford 
and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded $144,000 assigned to the Robert Bowens Center and 
$150,000 assigned to the Ruth Peterson Center through the Oakland County Senior Center Matching 
Grant Program; and, 
WHEREAS, the grant will allow the city to renovate and update structurally deficient, unsafe and 
inaccessible senior facilities so they can be used and enjoyed by the qlder adult and disabled communities 
in safe, inclusive, and innovative ways for years to come; and, 
WHEREAS, the matching requirement for this Grant Progratn has been waived by Oakland County; and, 
WHEREAS, the Grant Program requires that the City of Pontiac certif>' compliance with all Grant 
Program requirements, including commitment to long-term Iilaintenancetmd all project cost overruns. 
WHEREAS, the funds from the grant will increase thel:>udgeted revenuefqrthe current fiscal year 
2022-2023 in the amount of $294,500 for grant incgtne, and increase the appr<:>priations in the 
amount of $294,000, representing grant expendittiresi 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby appr<)Ves the proposed budget 
amendment for the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget as requestedby.theA,dministration toincrease budgeted 
revenues in the amount of $294,000 to,a~,;ioynt 212-000-532.QOQ,.OCSCMG Federal Grant Others, and 
appropriations in the amount of $150,000 to accoµnt 212-813-818,000-OCSCMG - Other Prof Serv 
(Ruth Center) and $144,000 to account 212c:814-8T8.000-OCSCMG- Other Prof Serv (Bowen). 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker:and Rutherford 
No:None · · · 
Resolution Passed 

Planning 
23-77 llesol~tion to 1tppr()vethe proposed b:Q~get amendment for Budget Year 2022-23 
to transfer $35,000 from GL account 101-721-702-000for Salaries and Wages to GL account 101-
721-818-000 for Other Professional Services fotPlifnµing Consulting Services. Moved by 
Councilperson Parker and secpnd by Councilperson Rutherford. 

WHEREAS, The Department of Community Development must hire and train the Planning Division to 
properly administer plan review for Pianning and Zoning functions; and, 
WHEREAS, the consultant, Carlisiei\f ortman Associates, Inc. has performed consultant work since 
December 1, 2022 for plan revieWservices on a temporary basis while Planning Staff are hired and 
trained; and, · 

WHEREAS, the City needs to transfer funds from the Planning Division's General Ledger account for 
Salary & Wages to Other Professional Services for these consultative services in lieu of having unfilled 
positions during this budget year. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council approves the proposed budget 
amendment of $35,000 from the Planning Division's Salary & Wages GL account 101-721-702.000 to 
Other Professional Services GL account 101-721-818.000. 

Purchasing 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

7 



February 21, 2023 Draft 

Motion to table Resolution #23-66 (Resolution to recognize Contract Template 
Change for City Building Scanning Documents Contract) indefinitely. Moved by Councilperson 
Carrington and second by Councilperson Rutherford. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington and Goodman 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

23-78 Resolution to approve revisions to AmeriScan Contract. Moved by Councilperson 
Parker and second by Councilperson Goodman. 

Whereas, the Purchasing Manager has completed her due diligence by requesting contract revisions to 
protect the City's interests better; 
Whereas, the Purchasing Manager is notifying Council of change~ in the terms and conditions of the 
contract; · · 
Now, therefore, Be It Resolved, the Pontiac City Councihtpproves the attached AmeriScan contract which 
includes revised terms and conditions. 

Ayes: McGuiness, Parker, Rutherford,Cftrrington, G9odman and James 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Public Comment 
1. Dr. Deidre Waterman 
2. Chuck Johnson 
3. Larry Jasper 

Discussions 
Larcenies from Automobiles 

Swift Patching of Potholes, Proactiye Approaeh by Pub fie Works 

Closed Session 
23-79 Resolution to prQceed into Closed Session at 8:14 p.m. to consider and discuss the 
confidential Leg!:ll Opinion concerning a pending Marihuana Appeal. Moved by Councilperson 
Carrington and second by Councilp.el'$On Goodman. 

WHEREAS, the Mayor directed th~Gity's outside legal counsel, Clark Hill PLC, to provide an attorney
client privileged legal opinion addressing legal issues related to a pending marihuana appeal and Clark Hill 
PLC has prepared a Memorandum dated February 15, 2023; and WHEREAS, the Michigan Open Meetings 
Act provides that a public body may meet in Closed Session to consider material exempt from discussion 
or disclosure by state or federal statute; and WHEREAS, written confidential communications that are the 
subject of attorney-client privilege are exempt from disclosure and may be discussed in Closed Session 
pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(h). NOW THEREFOR BE IT 
RESOLVED, the City Council will proceed in Closed Session pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open 
Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(h) to review and discuss the confidential attorney-client Memorandum dated 
February 15, 2023 concerning legal issues in connection with a pending marihuana appeal. 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Abstain: Rutherford 

8 



I . 

February 21, 2023 Draft 

Resolution Passed 

Motion to come out of Closed Session at 8:55 p.m. Moved by Councilperson Goodman 
and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

Ayes: Parker, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Motion Carried 
Councilwoman Rutherford was absent during the vote and did not participate in Closed 
Session 

Councilman Goodman left the meeting at 8:55 p.m. 

Communications 
City Council and Mayor's Office 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Greimel, Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford,,(;oimcilman William Pat~er Jr., Councilwoman 
Kathalee James, Council President Pro-Tern Williall'i:'Carrington and Council J>tesident Mike McGuiness 
made closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn therweeting. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson Parker. · 

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington,.la~es, McGµitmess and Parker 
No:None · · 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGltlnness ~djburned the meet.~ng at 9:12 p.m. 

Garland S. Doyle 
City Clerk 

9 



#1 

SPECIAL 
PRESENTATION 



Jim Nash 

Norton Street Innovation: 
February 28, 2023 

~" --------:-"'"'-••'.t- -~1:r-- ~-. 

v ~-

-· --



Presentation Agenda 

FRIENDS OF THE 

ASSOCIATION 

Jim Nash 

The HEART of 0.aki.arid County 

L-utJ 
L--J 

WATER-RESOURCES COMMISSIONER 

Jim Nash PONTIAC --- CV,Ri<. :NC 
:::crs..SJLT'f'\G ENS11\i::CERS s:~,CE )C') 5 

c .. 1,-,oi,,: P.!'11.CR 

>,.fi'a\C.l,.:i"l.i:C CCt:1\CII. 



Augusta Drain: Pre-Construction (1963) 

Augusta Drain: 
Original location 

~ Nonpoint ~ Project >> 
Source Pollution Overview 

Public 
Engagement ~ 

Augusta Drain: 
Current Property 

and Location 

Project 
Schedule ~ Questions 

Jim Nash 

> 



Augusta Drain: Construction (1972) 

('.. 

'
Q 
n1 ...... 
~ 

~ 

"' .¥,..1 
J«.,J 

/kluvrtl- i)/2,/JuJ 

Ao61Mr,i; m;.,., w.112.(!J.1r.M· 

,11,,a-_ sr. Ju-/,,,fr,", ,. lll, ✓,,,_,.,., ~ -.A R.•I!. 
Ai/)~,"' , er. < < J t-."'7• 

Nonpoint 
Source Pollution ~ t:~~~~ >> Public 

Engagement ~ Project 
Schedule 

Jim Nash 

G,,,1; ... ::.!i,.a,-...M. 

~ef!{.-1 -~1•V~_!V!:!f&.r.;t. ~ .$//ff4¥j'{f/?.Se"! 

~ Questions > 



Augusta Drain: Post Construction 
Jim Nash 

1974 2022 



Augusta Drain: Today 

~ Non point ~ Project >> 
Source Pollution Overview 

Public 
Engagement ~ Project 

Schedule ~ Questions 

Jim Nash 

> 



Nonpoint Source Pollution 

• Pollution caused by sediment, 
nutrients, organic, and toxic 
substances 

• Originate from land-use 
activities 

• Carried to lakes, rivers and 
streams by surface runoff via 
rainfall or snowmelt 

~ t:i~~~ >> Public 
Engagement ~ 

https://www31akes.com/non-point-source-pollution/ 

Project 
Schedule ~ Questions 

JimNa;h 

> 



Project Overview 

,,,--/-

-"-
/ " / 

~1-.. 
/ 

~ ~ 

~ OR. 

• Grant Funding 

• EGLE Clean Water State Revolving Fund + American 
Rescue Plan 

• ~$1 .3 million 

• Project Description 

JimNa,lz 

• Curb cuts and modifications to stormwater catch basins 

• Collect stormwater in bioretention cells 

• Promote infiltration with native plants 

• Gathering space and walking trail 

~ Public z 
Engagement ~ 

Project 
Schedule ~ Questions > 



Project Overview ... Examples 

~ Public z 
Engagement ~ 

Project 
Schedule 

Jim Nash 

~ Questions > 



Project Overview: Progress to Date 

Infiltration Tests 

Florence St - Clay 

►~ Public z Engagement ~ 
Project 

Schedule 

Jim Nash 

Questions 



Project Overview: Progress to Date 

►~ Public ~ 
Engagement ~ 

Project 
Schedule 

Jim Nash 

~ Questions > 



Public Engagement 

• Community Event Materials 

• 

• Postcards, door hangers, posters 

• Project sign, storymap 

• Website: oakgov.com/nortonstreet 

Community Engagement Events 

• March 23 and June 15 

• Gather input on: 

• Name, plant selection, future visioning, etc. 

• Provide realistic, year-round pictures of bioretention 

• Discuss public art opportunity 

'.~ 

,'""~~~~~.~-' 
~ :C~oJ~~~e >> Questions > 



Project Schedule 

• Winter 2023: Public Engagement and Initial Design 

• Present at City Council (February 28, 2023) 

• Community Engagement Event (March 23, 2023) 

• Summer 2023: Public Engagement and Final Design 

• Community Engagement Event (June 15, 2023) 

• Fall 2023: Construction Begins 

• Fall 2024: Project Completion 

• Fall 2024: Naming Ceremony/Ribbon Cutting 
Join us! 

Date: M3rcn :::_3_ 20:2 

Vlhrrt to-arq::iect: 01.11=::;,;r_ f.:,rn1!\• f- C:'1d y 

e-.·-;"r1: ,-.,tn tcc-j ~n-d ;;1:::tv t,tec'. i)r<:S-s -:':,r 
.:;;1!v,c:itrcr. 

Jim Nash 

~ Questions > 



Questions/Comments? 

~'IJim Nash 
Water Resources Commissioner 

248-842-6185 
nashj@oakgov.com 

~'Lynne Seymour 
Chief Engineer 
248-421-5878 

seymourl@oakgov.com 

~"Trisha Bruzek •Julia Ruffin 
Communications & Supervisor 

248-494-6826 
bruzekp@oakgov.com 

~ Liaison 
248-791-4367 

ruffinj@oakgov.com 

,_ 

~"Stephanie Petrillo 
Environmental Planner 

947-500-7006 
petriellos@oakgov.com 

Jim Nash 



#4 

ORDINANCE 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO.# __ 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOW ADULT .. USE MARIHUANA ESTABLISHMENTS TO OPERATE IN 
THE CITY OF PONTIAC PURSUANT TO THE MICHIGAN REGULATION AND TAXATION OF 
MARIHUANA ACT, INITIATED LAW 1 OF 2018, MCL 333.27951 ET SEQ.; TO PROVIDE FOR 
STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES TO PERMIT AND REGULATE ADULT"USE MARIHUANA 
ESTABLISHMENTS: TO PROVIDE FOR THE IMPOSITION OF PERMIT APPLICATION FEES 
AND R!:NEWAL FEES; AND TO IMPOSE CONDITIONS FOR THE OPERATION OF ADULT~ 
USE MARIHUANA ESTABLISHMENTS. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

ARTICLE-~· ADULT .. use MARIHUANA BUSINESS LICENSING 

Sec. 01 :Title. 

The title of this ordinance shall be the "City of Pontiac Adult-Use Marlhuana Business 

Ordinance," 

Sec. 02. Purpose and Intent. 

A. Purpose, The purpose of this Ordinance Is to establish standards and procedures 

for the lssuance1 regulallon, renewal, suspension, and revocation of business licenses for adult~ 

use rnarlhuana establishments lh accordance with the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

. Marlhuana Act, lnltlated Law 1 of 20181 MCL 333.21951 et seq, (°MRTMN') so as to protect the 

public bealth, safety, and welfare of residents of the City by setting forth the manner In which 

adult-use rnarlhuana businesses oan be operated In the City, Further the purpose of this 

Ordinance Is to: 

(1) Proteot the health, welfare and safety of the public through reasonable regulatlons on 

adult~use marlhuana buslness operations as It relates to noise, odor, air and water quality, food 

safety, public safety, security for the establishments and Its personnel, and other health and safety 

concerns; 

(2) Protect reslde~tlal zoned properties and neighborhoods by limiting the location and the 

concentration of types of Marijuana Businesses to specific areas of the City; 

(3) Establish application and license fees to defray and recover the Olly's costs for 

administering and enforcing this ordinance; 



ll' 

(4) Recognize that the City of Pontiac has been Identified by the State of Michigan's 

Cannabis Regulatory Agency as a city that has been disproportionately Impacted by marlhuana 

prohibition and enforcement and that social equity In the marlhuana Industry Is necessary to 

address the hlstorlcal disproportionate Impact of marlhuana prohibition and enforcement upon 

Pontiac residents and to posltlvely Impact the Pontiac community; 

(6) Minimize the adverse effects from growing, processing, dispensing and storage of 

marlhuana; 

(6) Minimize the adverse effects from excessive consumption and use of marlhuana; 

(7) Coordinate with state laws and regulations addressing Marlhuana Businesses; and 

(8) io restrict the Issuance of Marlhuana Business permits only to those l~dlvlduals and 

entitles that demonstrate an Intent and ablllty to fully comply with this Ordinance and the laws of 

the City and the State of Michigan, 

B. Legislative Intent. This ordinance authorizes the establishment of adultMuse 

marlhuana businesses within the City of Pontiac consistent with the provisions of MRTMA, subject 

to the following: 

(1) Use, distribution, oulll\Jatlon, production, possession, and transportation of 

marlhuana remains Illegal under federal law, and marlhuana remains classified as a "controlled 

substance" by federal law. Nothing In this ordinance Is Intended to promote or condone the 

productlon1 distribution, or possession of marlhuana In violation of any applicable law. Nothing In 

this ordinance ls Intended to grant Immunity from any criminal prosecution under state or federal 

law, This ordinance does not protect the owners of properties on which a marlhuana commercial 

operation Is occurring from prosecution or from havlnt:J their property seized by federal law 

enforcement authorities. 

(2) This ordinance Is to be construed to protect the public health, safety and welf~re 

over commercial adult~use marlhuana business Interests, The operation of a permitted adult~use 

marlhuana business In the City Is a revocable privilege and not a right In the City, Nothing In this 

ordinance ls to be construed to grant a property right for an lndlvldual or business entity to engage, 

obtain, or have renewed a Clty~lssued permit to engage In the use, distribution, cultlvatlon, 

production, possesslon1 transportation or sale of adult~use marlhuana as a commercial enterprise 

2 



In the City. The City determines that the commerclallzatlon of marlhuana Is a "closely regulated 

Industry" as that term Is used In U,S, Supreme Court Jurisprudence, 

(3) Any Individual or business entity which purports to have engaged In the use, 

distribution, cultivation, production, possession, transportation or sale of marlhuana as a 

commercial enterprise In the City without obtaining the required authorization required by this 

ordinance Is deemed to be an Illegally established nuisance, and as such Is not entitled to legal 

nonconforming status under this ordinance, the City zoning ordinance, or state statutory or 

common law. 

(4) Nothing In this ordinance Is intended to grant Immunity from criminal or civil 

prosecution, penalty or sanction for the cultivation, manufacture, possession, use, sale, 

distribution or transport of marlhuana In any form that ls not In strict compliance with the MRTMA 

and the Marlhuana Tracking Act, and all appllcable administrative rules promulgated by the State 

of Michigan regarding the commercialization of marlhuana, Strict compliance with all applicable 

state laws and regulations Is a requirement for the Issuance or renewal of any permit Issued under 

this ordinance, and noncompllance with any applicable state law or regulation Is grounds for the 

revocation or nonrenewal of any permit Issued under this ordinance, 

C, Indemnification of the City, 

(1) By accepting a permit Issued pursuant to this ordinance, the holder waives and 

releases the City, Its officers, elected officlals, and employees from any llablllty for lnj~rles, 

damages or llabllltles of any kind that result from ahy arrest or prosecution of marlhuana business 

owners, operators, employees, clients or customers for a vlolatlon of state or federal laws, rules 

or regulations, 

(2) By accepting a permit Issued pursuant to this ordinance, the holder agrees to 

Indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, Its officers, elected officials, employees, and 

Insurers, against all llablllty, claims or demands arising on account of any clalm of diminution of 

property value by a property owner whose property Is located In proximity to a licensed operating 

marlhuana business arising out of, claimed to have arisen out of, or In any manner connected 

with the operation of a marlhuana business or any clalm based on an alleged Injury to business 

or property by reason of a claimed violation of the federal Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt 

organizations Act (RICO), 1 B U,S,O, § 1964(0), 

3 



'I 

D, Reservation, 

(1) The City of Pontiac shall not waive or constrain, In any manner, the right and 

prerogative of the City of Pontiac to reject any and all appllcatkms1 to reject an appllcatlon not 

accompanied with the required documentation or data required by the application, or to reject an 

application which Is any way Incomplete, Irregular, hot responsive or not respohslble, 

(2) The City of Pontiac shall not waive or constraln 1 In any manner, the right and 

prerogative of the City of Pont\E\c to amend or repeal this ordinance In any manner, Including, but 

not limited to, the complete prohibition of any type of adult~use marlhuana business or limiting the 

number and types of adultMuse marlhuana businesses authorized to operate In the City. 

(3) Nothing In this ordinance Is to be construed to grant or grandfather any marlhuana 

business a vested right, license, permit or privilege for continued operations within the City, 

Sec. 03. Definitions. 

Unless defined by this ordinance, any term used In this Section that ls defined by the MRTMA, or 
' 

the Administrative Rules promulgated by the Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory 

Affairs addressing marlhuana shall have the definition given In MRTMA and In the Rules, 

As used In this Section, the following terms shall have the meanings Indicated; 

"Applicant" means a person who applies for a City-Issued permit to operate a Marlhuana Business In 

accordance with the terms of this Ordinance and the City zoning ordinance, Wrth respect to disclosures 

In an application for a permit Issued pursuant to this Ordinance for purposes of lneUglblllty for a permit 

and the tra11sfer of an Interest In an Issued permit, the term 11appllcant11 Includes a mane1gerlal employee 
•, 

of the applicant, any person who holds any direct or Indirect ownership Interest In the Marlhuana 

Business, and the following true parties of Interest for each type of applicant: 

(1) For an lndlvldual or sole proprletorshlp: the proprietor and spouse, 

(2) For a partnership and limited llablltty partnership: all partners and their spouses, 

(3) For a llmlted partnership and llmlted llablllty limited partnership: all general and limited 

partners1 and their spouses, 

4 



(4) For a limited llablllty compemy: all members and managers, a~d thelr spouses, 

(5) For a privately held corporation: all corporate officers or persons with equivalent tltles 

and their spouses, all directors and their spouses, and all stockholders, and their spouses, 

(6) For a publlcly held corporation: all corporate officers or persons with equivalent titles and 

their spouses, all directors and their spouses, and all stockholders, and their spouses, 

(7) r=or a multilevel ownership enterprise: any entity or person that receives or has the right 

to receive gross or net profits from the enterprise during any full or partial calendar or fiscal year, 

(8) For a nonprofit corporation: all lndlvlduals and entitles with membership or shareholder 

rights In accordance with the articles of Incorporation or the bylaws and their spouses, 

(9) For a trust: all trustees, any Individual or body able to control and direct affairs of the 

trust, and any beneficiary who receives or has the right to receive the gross or net profit 

distributions of the trust during any full or partial calendar or fiscal year, and their spouses, 

11Appllcation11 means the form(s) provided by the City, accompanied with the nonrefundable 

applloatlon fee per each permit requested, 

11Clty0 means the City of Pontiac, Michigan. 

°Class A marlhuana grower' means a grower licensed lo grow not more than 100 

marlhuana plants. 

11class A Mlorobuslness11 means a marlhuana establishment authorized to operate at a single 

looatlon and cultlvate not more than 300 mature marlhuana plants; package marlhuanaj purchase 

marlhuana concentrate and marlhuana-lnfused products from licensed marlhuana processors; 

sell or transfer marlhuana and marlhuana-lnfused products to Individuals 21 years of age and 

older; and transfer marlhuana to a safely compliance faclllty for testln9, 

' 11Class 13 marlhuana grower" means a grower llcensed to grow not more than 600 

marlhuana plants. 

110lass C marlhuana grower" means a grower licensed to grow not more than !2,0oo 

rnarlhuana plants. 

5 



11Co~Locate11 or 11Co~Locatlon11 means any combination of growers, processors, retailers, social 

equity retailers, designated consumption, and Class A mlcrobuslness establishments that may 

operate as separate marlhuana buslhesses at the same physical location, 

"Cultivate" means to propagate, breed, grow, harvest, dry, cure, or separate parts of the 

marlhuana plant by manual or mechanical means. 

"Department" means the state of Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 

(LARA), lncludlng without llmltatlon, the Cannabis Regulatory Agency, or Its successor agency, 

"Designated Consumption Establlshment" means a marlhuana-related business authorized to 

permit lndlVlduals 21 years of age and older to consume marlhuana products on the licensed 

.commerolal premises located In the 0~2 Downtown overlay District No, 3, 

"Disqualifying conviction" means a conviction that makes ah appllcant Ineligible to receive a 

license under MRTMA and the Rules, 

"Equivalent Ucenseu means any of the following state operating llcenses when held by a single 

licensee: 

(1) Grower licenses of ahy class under both the Medical Marlhuana Facllltles 

Licensing Act, MOL 333,271'01 et. seq. ("MMFLA") and MRTMA, 

(2) Processor licenses under both the MMFLA and MRTMA. 

(3) Secure transporter licenses under both the MMFLA and MRTMA, 

(4) Safety compliance facility licenses under both the MMFLA and MRTMA. 

(6) A provisioning center license under the MMFLA and a retailer establishment 

license Uhder the MRTMA. 

"Grower" means a licensee establishment that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures and packages 

marlhuana for sale or transfer to a processor, retailer, or another grower, 

"Industrial Hemp" means the term as defined at MOL 333,27963 (c), 

6 



"License'' means a license that Is Issued by the Department under MRTMA that allows the 

licensee to operate an adult~use marlhuana establishment In the City. 

11Marlhuana11 means the term as defined at MCL 333,27953, For purposes of this Ordinance 

marlhuana does not include Industrial hemp, 

11Marlhuana accessorles11 means the term as defined at MCL 333.27953 (g), 

11Marlhuana concentrate11 means the resin extracted from any part of the plant of the genus 

cannabis, 

"Marlhuana Business" means the following adult .. use marlhuana estab!lshmen'ts, whether operated 

for profit or not for profit: (a) grower, (b) safety compliance faclllty, (c) processor, (d) retailer, (e) 

soclalwequlty retailer, (f) secure transporter, (g) Class A mlcrobuslness, (h) designated consumptlon 

establlshment, (l) marlhuana event organizer or 0) temporary marlhuana event. 

11Marlhuana establishment" means a location at which a permlttee Is permitted to operate under 

this Ordinance and MRTMA. 

"Marlhuana Event Organizer' means a person licensed to apply for a temporary marlhuana event 

license, 

11Marlhuana-lnfused Product11 means a topical formulation, tlnctl.lre, beverage, edible Sl.lbstance, 

or similar product containing marlhuana and other Ingredients and that Is Intended for human 

consumption. 

11Marlhuana Tracking Act11 or 11MTA1' means Public Act 282 of 2016, MCL 333,27901 1 et seq,, as 

amended and all future amendments. 

0M lchlgan Regulation ahd T axatlon of M arlhuana Act11 or 11M RTMA" means, Initiated law 1 of 20181 

MCL 333,27951, et. seq., as amended and all future amendments. 

11Permlt11 means the permit Issued pursuant to this ordinance authorizing the operation of a 

Marlhuana Business In the City. 

"Permlttee" means a person who receives and holds a permit to operate a Marlhuana Business 

Issued by the City under this ordinance. 

7 



11Person11 means an Individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, limited partnership, llmlted llablllty 

llmlted partnership, corporation, llmlted llablllty company, trust, or other legal entity, and Includes 

persons within the definition of 11appllcant11 as that term Is used In this Ordinance, 

"Processor" means a person licensed to purchase or obtain marlhuana from a grower 

establishment and who processes the marlhuana and sells or transfers It In packaged form to a 

retailer, class A tnlcrobuslness, or another processor, A processor Is not prohibited from handling, 

processing, marketing or brokering Industrial hemp pursuant to the Industrial Hemp Research and 

Development Act, 

"Retaller" means a licensee that obtains marlhuana from tnarihuana establishments and sells or 

otherwise transfers marlhuana to marlhuana establishments and to Individuals who are 21 years 

of age or older In accordance with MRTMA, 

'
1Rules" means the unified administrative rules promulgated and from time to time amended by 

the Department to Implement the MMFLA and MRTMA. 

"Safety Compliance Facility" means a person licensed to test marlhuana, Including certification 

for potency and the presence of contaminants. 

"Secure Transporter11 means a person llcensed to obtain marlhuana from marlhuana 

establishments In order to transport marlhuana to marlhuana establishments. 

"School" means and Includes buildings and grounds used for school purposes to provide 

Instruction to chlldren and youth 111 grades pre-kindergarten through 12 by a public, prlv1:1te, 

denomlnatlonal 1 or parochial school. 

11Soclal Equity-Qualified Business" mean a marlhuana establishment operated by an applicant 

that qualifies for the benefits offered under the social equity program administered by either the 

Department or the City. 

"Stakeholder' means, with respect to a trust, the trustee and beneficiaries; with respect to a llmlted 

II ability company, all members and managers; with respect to a corporation, whether proflt or non~ 

profit, all stockholders, directors, corporate officers or persons with equivalent titles; and with 

respect to a partnership or llmlted llablllty partnership, all general and limited partners. 

8 



"State" rneans the State of Michigan, 

11State Operating Ucense0 means a license that Is Issued by the Department under MRTMA that 

allows the licensee to operate an adult-use marlhuana establishment, as specified In the, license. 

"Temporary Marlhuana Evenf' means a llcense held by a marlhuana event organlzer for an event 

where the onslte sale or consumption of marlhuana products, or both, are authorized at the 

location Indicated on the state license durln9 the dates Indicated on the state license. 

Sac. 04. Creation of Marlhuana Buslne~s Commission; Composition; Quorum 

(a) There Is hereby created a Marlhuana Business Commission, There shall be four (4) 

members of the Marlhuana Business Commission, The membership shall elect from among Its 

members a chairman, vice-chairman, and secretary. 

(b) A quorum of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall consist of three (3) mem.bers, 

Sec. 05. Marlhuana auslness Commission Membership; Quallfloatlonsj Termi Vacancies; 

Compensation. 

(a) Members of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall be residents of the city, and shall be 

chosen so far as reasonably practicable In such a manner as to represent a cross .. sectlon of the 

community, 

(b) Members of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall be appointed by the mayor to serve 

at the pleasure of the mayor for a term of three (3) years, Reappointment of a member to serve 

an additional consecutive term Is subject to council approval. 

(c) If a. vacancy occurs on the Marihuana Business Commission, the mayor shall appoint a new 

member to fill the vacancy. 

(d) Members of the Marlhuana Business Commission shall serve without pay, 

Sec, 06, Marlhuana auslness Commtsston Powers anct Duties. 

The Marlhuana Business Commission shall review and decide all appeals that are forwarded to 

It by the clerk under this ordinance. The Marlhuana Business Commission shall review all appeals 

de novo, The Marlhuana Business Commission shall only overturn a decision or finding of the 

clerk If it flnds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or caprlolous and not supported by material, 

9 



substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the clerk In arriving at such 

decision or finding, 

Sec. 01. Marlhuana Business Con,mlsslon Rules and Regulations; Meetings, 

(a) The Marlhuana Business Commission shall adopt such rules and regulations· as It deems 

necessary to govern Its proceedings and dellberatlons, 

(b) The rules and regulations adopted by the Marlhuana Buslnes$ Commission shall be subject 

to approval by the councll. 

(c) The Marlhuana Business Commission shall maintain a written record of Its proceedings and 

actions Which shall be available for public Inspection, showing the action of the commission and 

the vote of each member upon each question considered, All meetings of the commission shall 

be held In conformance with the open meetings act, Act No. 287 of the Public Acts of 1978, being 

sections 15,261 to 16,276, of the Michigan Complied Laws, 

Sec. 08. Marihuana Business Rules and Regulations, 

(a) In addition to the Rules promulgated by the Department and the statutes of the State of 

Michigan, the operatloM of a Marlhuana Business shall be conducted In accordance with the 

provisions of this ordinance and the City Code of Ordinances, Including the zoning ordinance, 

(b) Retailer establishments and Social Equity Retailer establishments located outside of the C-

2 D~wntown Adult~Use Marlhuana Business Overlay District shall be closed for business, and no 

sale or other distribution of marlhuana In any. form shall occur upon the preml~es, between the , 

hours of 10:00 p,m, and 7:00 a,m, 

(c) Delivery of a marlhuana product for sale or transfer to marlhuana customers by Retailer 

Sstabllshments and Social Equity Retailer Establishments ls permitted In strict compliance with 

Department Rules, 

(d) Drlv~t.hru windows at Retailer Establishments and Social Equity Reta!ler Establishments are 

prohibited, 

Sec. 09, Licensing of Adult-Use Marlhuana Businesses. 

(a) Number of permitted adult~use Marlhuana Businesses. 

10 



Type of Establishmeht 

Grower 

Processor 

Secure transporter 

Retailer 

Social E<:1ulty Retailer 

Class A Mlcrobuslness 

Safety compliance facility 

Designated Consumption EstabllshmentwNorth of Huron Street 

Designated Consumption Establishment-South of Huron Street 

Marlhuana event o'rganlzer 

Temporary marlhuana event 

No llmlt 

Nollmlt 

No llmll 

18 
6 

6 

Nollmlt 

3 

3 

Nollmlt 

No limit 

Sec.10. City Marihuana ausiness Permit and Annual Fee Required, 

(a) No person shall establish or operate a Marlhuana Business located In the City without first 

meeting all of the requirements set forth In this Ordinance, obtaining a permit from the City Clerk, 

and obtaining a State Operating License, Permits and Slate Operating Licenses shall be kept 

current and publicly displayed within the business. Failure to maintain or display current state 

licenses and City permits Is a violation of this ordinance, A Marlhuana Business operating without 

a City permit under this Ordinance or without a State llcense Is declared to be a public nuisance, 

(b) There shall be an lnltlal application fee of $5.000,00 and an annual nonrefundable renewal 

of permit fee of $?,000,00 to defray the administrative and enforcement costs associated with 

marlhuana businesses located in the City, 

(c) The Clty permit fee requirement set forth In this ordinance shall be In addition to1 and not in 

lieu of I any other llcensJng and permitting requirements Imposed by the Department and any other 

state regulatory agency, or by City ordinance, Including, by way of example1 and not limited to1 

any applicable fees for site plan revlewi zoning review, lnspectlons1 or building permits, 

(d) A separate permit Is required for each Marlhuana Business located at a premises from which 

an adult--use marlhuana commercial business Is operated, Operation of a grower, prooessor1 

retailer esttlbllshment or social equity retailer establishment, Class A mlcrobµslness 1 and 

11 



'· 

designated consumption establishment at the same location Is authorized, provided that each 

establishment Is separately llcensed and permitted, Operation of a retailer establishment or social 

equity retailer establishment, Class A mlcrobuslness and a designated consumption 

establishment at the same location as a grower or processing establishment .faQffity ts authorized 

when In conformity with the City zoning ordinance, 

(e) Within thirty (SO) days of approval of the applicant's appllcatlon, the applicant wlll start all 

necessary requirements as required by the City to obtain their certificate of occupancy, Including, 

without llmllatlon, complying with all applloable building department, fire department, code and 

lnspectlon requirements, lncludlng the approval of the site plan. 

(0 All Marlhuana Business permits shall be effective for one (1) year of Its original date of 

Issuance by the City and must be renewed annually, 

(g) The conditional permlttee has one (1) year to complete Its site plan upon the approval of the 

Issuance of the Marlhuana Business conditional permit. The Community Development Director 

may extend the completion of the site plan up to an additional six months, provided the applicant 

demonstrates good cause for the extension, 

Sec, 11, Loc~tion Crlterl~. 

12 

(a) No marlhmma business Is ellglble to receive a permit unless at the time the application 

for the marlhuana business operating permit Is submitted, the location of the proposed 

business operation complies with the requirements set forth In the City zoning ordinances 

as required for the specific type of marlhuana commercial business for which the permit 

Is being sought, No Adult .. Use Marlhuana Retailers shall be permitted outside of the 

Aclult~Use Marlhuana Business Overlay Dlstrlcts1 as set forth In the City zoning 

ordlnance1 as amended, 

(b) Mobile rnarlhuana businesses and limited contact transaction operations, except for 

curbside service In a designated area at a marlhuana sales location In compll~nce with 

applicable Department~lssued rules and the City zoning ordinance, are prohibited, 

(o) A permittee shall not operate a marlhuana business at any location In the City other than 

at the address provided In the application on file with the City Clerk. 



Sec. 12. General Permtt Appllcation Requirements. 

(a) An applicant seeking a permit pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance and llcensure by 

the state under MRTMA must submit an application In writing to the City Clerk on forms provided 

by the City Clerk. At the time of app1lcatlon1 the appllcatlon must be accompanied by a 

nonrefundable application fee of $6 1000,00 to defray the costs Incurred by the City for processing 

of the application, In addition, the applicant shall present copies of governmentNlssued 

photographic Identification to accompany the applloatlon. 

(b) An application shall be complete and made under the penalty of perjury and shall contain 

all of the following: 

13 

(1) The applicants, all of Its stakeholders1 and the proposed manager's full name, date 

of birth, residential and business address, email address, and telephone numbers 

Including emergency contact Information, and a copy of a government-Issued 

photographic ldentlfloatlon card of the applicant and all stakeholders: 

(a) If the applicant Is an Individual or sole proprietorship, the proprietor and their 

spouse, If any, shall provide their name, address, date of birth, business address, 

buslne$s telephone number, emall address, social security number, and, If applicable, 

federal tax Identification (EIN) number, 

(b) If the applicant Is not an lndlvldual or sole proprletorshlp1 the applicant shall 

provide Information regarding the business entity, Including, wlthout llrnltatlon, the name 

and address of the entity, website address (If any), type of business organlze1tlon1 proof 

of registration wllh 1 or a certificate of good standing from, the State of Michigan, or other 

slate or foreign jurlsdlctlon, as applicable, and the natnes, dates of birth, residential and 

business addresses1 emall addresses, phone numbers of each appllcant1 each 

stakeholder and their spouses, and the federal tax identification number of the business 

entity. 

(2) The Identity of every person having an ownership or beneflclal Interest In the applicant 

with respect lo which the ltcense Is sought, Including the ownership structure of the entity 

that Identifies the ownership percentage held by each stakeholder; provided, however, a 
' social equlty~quallfled business entity Who Is an applicant must be able to demonstrate 



14 

61 % or more ownership by quallfylng soclal~equ\ty. applicants, Including ownership 

structure of the entity that Identifies the ownership percentage held by each stakeholder, 

(3) If the applicant Is not an lndlvld ual, the articles of Incorporation or organization, federal 

tax Identification number and confirmation letter, and the llmlted liability company's 

operating agreement, the corporatlon1s shareholder agreement and bylaws, and the 

· partnership agreement for a partnership or llmlled partnership, as applicable. 

(4) A copy of the applloant's notice of prequallfioatlon status Issued by the Department to 

operate an adultMuse rnarlhuana establishment. If the appllcant does not have adult-use 

prequallficatlon status from the Department, the application wlll not be processed by the 

City, 

(5) The name and address of the proposed Marlhuana Business and any additional 

contact Information deemed necessary by the City Clerk, Including the following: 

(a) A copy of the deed reflecting the applicant's ownership of the proposed 

permitted premises, or a purchase agreement or option to purchase the proposed 

permitted premises as applicable; or 

(b) A copy of the lease reflecting the right of the applicant to possess, or an 

agreement or option reflecting the applicant's right to lease, the proposed permitted 

premlses1 and a notarized statement from the owner of such property authorizing the use 

of the property for a marlhuana business as appllcable. 

(6) For the applicant and every stakeholder, 1:1ffirmatlon that each Is at least 21 years of 

age, 

(7) A criminal history background report of the applloant'a criminal history from the 

Internet Crimin~! History Access Tool (!CHAT) or a Michigan State Police criminal history 

report for applicants residing In Michigan. For applicants who reside In any other state, 

federal or foreign jurisdiction, or who have reslded In any other stale, federal or foreign 

Jurlsdlotlon within 6 years prior to the date of the appllcatlon provide a certified state, 

federal or foreign Jurisdiction sponsored or authorized criminal history report. The 

applicant Is responsible for all charges Incurred In requesting and reoelvlng the criminal 



16 

history report and the report must be dated within thirty (30) days of the dale of the 

appllcatlon. 

(8) Written consent authorizing the City to obtain a crlmlnal history report froh'\ the 

Michigan State Police, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, or other appllcable state, 

federal or foreign jurisdiction law enforcement or police agency, to ascertain whether the 

applicant and stakeholders have any disqualifying convictions or convictions Involving 

dishonesty, theft, fraud, or controlled substances, 

(9) A current organization ohart thatlncludes position descriptions and the names of each 

person holding such position, which shall Include date ~f birth, address, copy of photo 

Identification, and email address for any operator, manager, or employee If other than the 

applicant. 

( 10) A complete llst of all marlhuana related business permits and licenses held by 

applicant. 

(11) An attested disclosure whether the applicant or operator has ever had a business 

license revoked or suspended, and If revoked or suspended, the reason for such 

revocation or suspension and copies of the orders of revocation or suspension, 

(12) An attestation that no applicant or stakeholder Is Ineligible from holding a state 

lloense to operate a marlhuana commercial business. 

(13) An attestation that the applicant consents to Inspections, examinations, searches 

and.seizures required or undertaken pursuant to enforcement of this ordinance, 

(14) A statement that n~ applicant Is In default to the City for any property tax, special 

assessment, utility charges, fines, fees or other financial obligation owed to the City, 

(15) For the applicant and for each stakeholder a resume that Includes a buslnesa history 

. and any prior experience with a marlhuana~related business. 

(16} The proposed business plan of the applicant, which shall Include without llmltatlon, 

the following: 



16 

(a) A description of the type of the proposed adult~use marlhuana commercial 

operation and Its physical address; and 

(b) A staffing plan which describes the anticipated or actual number of 
' employees, Including an estimate of the r:iumber and type of Jobs that the business Is 

expected to create, a proposed llvlng wage or salary (at least 200 percent of the Federal 

Poverty Level for a fatnlly oftwo, at Its hourly basis) for all employees pursuant to MCL 

125,3501, MCL 125,35021 MCL 125.36041 article VII, § 34 Construction of constitution 

and law concerning counties, townships, cltles1 villages and article VII, § 22 Charters, 

resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution, and a 

health and welfare benefits package to be paid for such jobs, unless otherwise prohibited 

by state law, and the goals and ob)eotlves to recruit, hire and promote residents of the 

City; and 

(c) A staff training and education plan that the applicant wlll provide to 

employees: and 

(d) The financial structure, source of flnanclng 1 development and bulld~out 

budget and projected Initial operating budget of the proposed Marlhuana Buslnel:ls; and , 

(e) Short and long~term goals and objectives: and 

(f) An explanation, with eupportlng factual data, of the economic benefits to the 

ctty and the job creation for local reeldents to be achieved by the establishment fae»lty, a 

proposed llvlng wage or salary (at least 200 percent of the F'ederal Poverty Level for a family 

of two, at Its hourly basis) for all employees pursuant to MCL 126,3501 1 MOL 125,36021 

MCL 125,3504, article VII, § 34 Construction of constltutlon and law concerning countles, 

townships, cities, vlllages and article VII, § 22 Charters, resolutions, ordinances, 

enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution, and a health and welfare benefits 

package to be paid for such Jobs, unless otherwise prohibited by state law, Including plans 

for community outreach and worker training programs; 

(g) If co~locatlon of Marlhuana Businesses Is proposed1 provide an explanation of 

the Integration of such businesses, Including a drawing showing the relatlonshlp between the 

businesses being co-,located1 Including floor area and the separation provided between such 



l . 

17 

facllltles1 Including ldentlflcatlon of any points of entry, Ingress or egress, and controls at eaoh 

locatlon; and 

(h) A neighborhood communlcatlon/educatloh plan and strategies: and 

(I) Any charitable plans and strategies whether through f lnanclal donations or 

volunteer work. 

( 17) A llghtlng plan showing the lighting outside of the marlhuana business for security 

purposes and compllance with appllcable City outdoor lighting requirements; 

(1 B) A security ptan, Including, but not llmlted to, llghtlng, alarms, barriers, 

recording/monitoring devices, safes, and/or security guard arrangements proposed for 

the establtshment ~ and premises, The security plan must contain the specification 

detalls of each Item of security equipment. 

(19) A to-scale diagram of the proposed licensed premises, no larger than 11 lnches by 

17 Inches, showing, without llmltatlon, building floor plah ahd layou~, ~II entryWays, 

doorways, or passageways, and means of publlc entry and exlts to the proposed licensed 

premises, loading zones, available on.-slte parking spaces, Including handicapped 

accessible spaces, fencing at the premises, and all areas In which marlhuana will be 

stored, grown, manufactured or dispensed; 

(20) Any proposed elevation drawlngs1 and photographs or other depletion of materials 

to be visible on the exterior of the proposed Marlhuana Buslneaa, 
' 

(21) A proposed marketing, advertlslng1 and business promotion plan for the proposed 

Marlhuana Business, 

(22) A description of planned tangible capital Investment In the City for each proposed 

Marlhuana Business. 

(23) A social equity plan that (a) promotes and encourages participation and ownership 

In the marlhuana Industry by local residents that have been disproportionately Impacted 

by marlhuana prohibition and enforcement, and that (b) positively Impacts local residents, 



18 

(24) A depletion of any proposed slgnage, text or graphic materials to be shown on the 

exterior of the proposed Marlhuana Business, 

(25) A sanitation plan designed to protect against any marlhuana being ingested on 

the premises by any person or anlmal, describing how the' waste and byproduct will be 

stored and disposed of, and how any marlhuana wlll be rendered unusable upon disposal. 

The sanitation plan shall Include a copy of the proposed contract or letter of Intent 

between the Applicant and sanitation waste provider, 

(28) A proposed Inventory and recordkeeplng plan that wlll track payment method, 

amount of payment1 time of sale, product quantity, and other product descriptors and 

compliance with the requirements of the Department. 

(27) Proof of financial responsibility ln the form of a commitment or letter of Intent to 

Issue an Insurance pollcy covering the business and naming the City of Pontiac, Its 

elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents, as addltlonal Insured parties, 

primary and non~contrlbutory available for the payment of any damages arising out of an 

act or omission of the applicant or Its stakeholders, agents, employees, or subcontractors, 

In the amount of: 

a, at least Two Mllllon Dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage; 

b, at least Two Mlll!on Dollars ($21000,000) for Injury to one (1) person; and 

c, at least Two MIiiion Dollars ($2 1000,000) for Injury to two (2) or more person 

resulting from the same occurrence. 

The Insurance pollcy underwriter must have a minimum A.M, Best Company 

Insurance ranking of B+, consistent with state law. The policy shall provide that the City 

shall be notified by the Insurance carrier thirty (30) days In advance of any cancellatlon 

or reduction In coverages, 

(28) A signed ackno,wledgement that the applicant understands that all matters related 

to marlhuana cultlvatlon, possession, dispensing, testing, transporting, distribution and 

use are subject to federal and state laws and regul~tlons, and that the approval of a 

permit hereunder does not exonerate or excuse the applicant from abiding by the 



19 

provisions and requirements and penalties associated therewith. Further, the applicant 

completely releases and forever discharges the city and Its respective employees, 

agents, facilities, Insurers, lndemnors, successors, heirs and/or assigns from any and all 

past, present or future claims, demands, obligations, acllons, causes of action, wrongful 

death olalms, rights, damages, costs, losses of services, expenses and compensation of 

any nature whatsoever, whether based on a tort, contract or other theory or recovery, 

which the applicant or Its stal<eholders may now have, or which may hereafter accrue or 

otherwise be acquired, on account of, or may In any way arise out of the applicant or 

stakeholders' application for a permit and, If Issued a permlt, the applicant or 

stakeholders' operation of a Marlhuana Business. 

(29) . A scaled locatlon area map that Identifies th~ relative locations of, and distances 

from, Schools, childcare centers, public parks-eontalnlng playground equlpmeftt, and 

religious Institutions, as measured along the centerline of the street or streets of address 

between two fixed points on the centerline determined by projecting straight lines, at right 

angles to the centerline, from the primary point of Ingress to the school, childcare center, 

ei:- religious Institution, or~ publlc parl<,--from tho playground equlpmet=ti nearest to 

contemplated locatlon, and from the primary point of Ingress to the contemplated location, 

(30) If the applicant Is applying for a permit to operate, a Retailer, a Social Equity 

Retaller,' a Class A Mlcrobuslness, a Designated Consumption Establishment, or a 

Temporary Marlhuana Event, a description of drug and alcohol awareness programs to 

be provided by the applicant to customers and the public, 

(31) . If the applicant Is applying for a permit to operate a grower, a cultivation plM that 

Includes a description of the cultivation methods to be used, Outdoor grows are 

prohibited, 

(32) If the appllcant Is applying for a permit to operate a grower, a chemical and 

pesticide storage plan that compiles with the requirements of the Department. 

(33) An applicant for a Marlhuana Secure Transporter license shall provide copies of 

the vehicle registration for all commercial motor vehicles that will be used to transport 

tnarlhuana or marlhuana-lnfused products, A secure transporter must provide proof of 

no~fault automobile Insurance with a company licensed to do business in Michigan with 



llmlts of llablllty not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single llmlt for bodily 

Injury and property damage, 

(34) Any other Information requested by the City Clerk considered to be relevant to the 

processing or consideration of the appllcatlon. 

(c) An applicant may apply for multlple Marlhuana Business permits of the same or different 

n~ture, except that Class A Mlorobuslness applicants may not hold an ownership Interest In a 

grower, processor, retailer, or social equity retaller, and social equity retailer permits are limited 

to soolal equity qualified applicants, No person who holds an ownership Interest In a safety 

oompllance faclllty or In ~ saoure transporter may hold an ownership Interest In a grower, ~ 

processor, a retaller, a social equity retaller, or a Class A mlcrobuslneas. 

Seo. 13. Marihuana Business Permit Application Process. 

(a) Upon receipt of a completed application meeting the requirements of this ordinance ahd 

payment of the permit application fee, the Clerk shall refer a copy o1 the application to the fire 

department and the Community Development Department, the planning division! and other 

affected departments for review and compliance with the City Code, 

(b) No appllcatlon for a permit shall be approved unless: 

(1) The fire department and the Community Development Department and other affected 

departments have Inspected the proposed leioatlan for compliance with all state and local 

bulldlng, electrical, fire, mechanical and plumbing requirements. 

(2) The Community Development Department, the plannln~ division, and other affected 

departments have confirmed th~t the proposed location complies with the zoning ordinance, 

(3) The proposed Marlhuana Business has been lssued a certificate of occupancy and, If 

necessary, a bulldlhg permit. 

(4) The City Treasurer confirms the applicant and each stakeholder an~ the proposed 

location of the Marlhuana l3uslnesses are not In default to the City, 

( c) After th1s or~~ooorn □s effe~e--Glefk-s~~ooe~~sa-Maflfltla-t:ia 

Buslness--a~oallons within 60 day&r After sixty (60) days from the effective date of this 

ordinance, the Clerk shall begin accepting adult~use Marlhuana Susln(:Jss applications for a permit 

2D 



to operate a grower, processor, secure transporter, safety compliance facility, marlhuana event 

organizer, and temporgrv marlhuana event. 

(d) The Clerk shall award a condltlonal permit to any applicant for a permit to operate a grower, 

processor, secure transporter, safety compHance facility, marlhuana event organizer, and 

temporary marlhuana event, upon the determination by the Clerk that the appllcatlon ls complete, 

the appllcant receives the City and State of Michigan approvals required In this ordinance, and 

the applicant meets all of the requirements of this ordinance and the City Code, Including the 

zoning ordinance, If the City Clerk Identifies, or ls Informed of, a deficiency In an applicatlon, the 

applicant has two (2) weeks to correct the deficiency after notification by the City Clerk, The Clerk 

wlll grant a final permit If the applicant obtains flnal site plan approval and special land use 

approval within 6 months of receiving a conditional permit, and obtains an operating permit from 

the City and an operating license from the Department within 18 months after the conditional 

permit Is granted and enters Into a written agreement with the City confirming that. the marlhuana 

establishment wlll operate In accordance with the business plans, bulldlng plans, design 

standards. soclal equity plans and all other operational standards described by the applicant In 

the application materials submitted. The agreement shall further provide that If the establishment 

breaches the agreement, then the City may revoke authorization of the establishment following 

notice and a public hearing, and that In such event, the City shall be entitled to Injunctive relief 

barring further operation of the establishment In the City. An extension of 6 months to obtain an 

operating permit from the City and an operating license from the Department may be granted In 

the discretion of the Clerk upon a showing of good cause for the delay, 
' 

(e) Retaller, Social Equity Retailer. Class A Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption 
' 

Establishment Applications. After sixty (60) days from the effective date of this ordinance, the 

Clerk shall set a 21-day application window perlod during which applicants may apply for a 
Retailer, Social Equity Retaller (limited to Social Equity Qualified applicants), Class A 

Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption Establishment permits, After the 21-day application 

window closes, the Clerk shall assess, evaluate, score and rank all applications for permits to 

operate a Retailer, Social Equity Retaller, Class A Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption 

Establishment submitted during the twenty-one (21) day application window period, The Clerk 

shall review all submitted applications for completeness, 

21 



(Q In Its appllcatlon assessment, evaluatlon 1 scoring, ranklng 1 and dellberatlons related to 

permits to operate a Retailer, Social l=.qutty Retailer, Class A Mlcrobuslneas1 and Designated 

Consumption Establtshment, the Clerk shall assess, evaluate, score, and rank each application 

based upon a polnt"based scoring and ranking procedure which shall be approved by City Councll 

resolutlon, a~aped by the Glerk consistent with the requirements, conditions, and provisions of 

this ordinance In each of the following categories: 

22 

(1) The content and sufficiency of the Information required to be In the applioatlon under 

this ordinance, Applicant must have submitted all required materials for each category In a 

professional, organized manner with olear and accurate labellng of all required Items, 

Failure to clearly and accurately label and organize the appllcallon materlals will result In 

the deduction of points, The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be 

five (5) points, 

(2) Whether the proposed Marlhuana Business will have a detrimental Impact on the 

surrounding area and neighborhood Including the dlstanc~ of the establishment to 

properties zoned or used resldentlally; traffic patterns, traffic mltlgatlon and resident safetyi 

plans for litter oontrol1 lolterh1g 1 noise mltlgatlon, odor mitigation, Applicant shall submit a 

traffic Impact study by a professional traffic engineer, Applicant shall submit a sanitation 

plan deslgned to protect against any marlhuana being Ingested on the premises b')! anv 

person or animal, describing how the waste and bygroduct wlll be stored and disposed of, 

and how any marlhuans WIii be rendered unusable upon dlsbosal. The sanitation plan shall 

Include a copy of the proposed contract between the Applicant and sanitation waste 

provider. Applicant shall submit an odor control plan sallstylng the crlterla In Sec, 15 of this 

prdlnance, The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be twenty (20) 

points, 

(3) Neighborhood Communlcatlon/Educallon Plan on behalf of the proposed Marlhuana 

Business, The plan should Include meetings, at least once per year, with the neighborhood 

organizations, residents and general public, and to provide a contact for on-going publlo 

Information, questions and concerns, Written notice to all property owners within 1500 feet 

of the marlhuana business looatlon, neighborhood organizations and City Clerk shall be 

provided, In addition, to other methods of notice, the written notice shall be sent by mall at 



'! 

23 

least two (2) weeks before the public meeting. The maximum number of scoring points In 

this category shall be ten (10) points, 

(4) Whether the applicant or Its stakeholders have made1 or plan to mal<e, significant 

physical Investment and Improvements to the bulldlng where the proposed Marlhuana 

Buslnet;Js Is to be located, Including the appllcant'a financial structure, source of financing,, 

,develoQment and bulld~out budget and projected Initial operating budget of the proposed 

,Marlhuana Business and proposed tangible capital lnvestmenti the current and proposed 

condition of the proposed location; and the appllcant's ownerehip stake In the physical 

location of the establishment. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall 

be ten (10) points, 

(6) Whether the applicant and all of Its stakeholders have a record of acts that are nqt 

detrimental to the public health, security, safety, morals, good order, or general welfare prior 

to the date of the application; applicant shall demonstrate and document a history of 

regulatory compliance with all federal, state and local laws and regulation$, and shall 

disclose all complalnts1 judgments, convictions, administrative and regulatory decisions, 

permit and license suspensions, revocations and fines, rendered by any federal1 slate and 

local government agencies, Including but not llmlted to wage and hour laws, anti~ 

dl1;1crlmlnatlon and civil rights laws, and occupatlonal1 health and safely lawa. The maximum 

number of scoring points In this category shall be ten (10) points, 

(6) Whether the applicant has disclosed and documented sufflclent 1inancl;:\I resources 

and total amount of capitalization to develop, operate and maintain a Retailer, Soclal Equity 

Retailer, Glass A Mlcrobuslnes$ or Designated Consumption Establishment, and 

demonstrates the requisite business experience to execute1 the submitted business plan 

and other plans required by this ordinance, The applicant should disclose and document 

sources and total amount of capitalization lo operate and malnlaln a Retailer establishment, 

a Social Equity Retailer, Class A Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption 

Establlshment1 and Include a CPA attested financial statement, a valid pro forma for three 

years, proof of flnanclal res~onslbillty In the form of a commitment or letter of Intent to issue 

an Insurance policy satisfying the criteria In Sec, 12 (b){27) of this ordinance, attest that the 

applicant and any of Its owners have not filed bankruptcy In the last seven (7) years, have 

not had !lens placed upon flnanclal accounts or property by the Internal Revenue Service or 



,., 

24 

state Treasuries, and has filed personal and/or corporate Income tax returns for the past 

five (5) years, The maximum number of scoring points In this categqry shall be twenty (20) 

points. 

(7) Description of staffing plan that Includes the number and type of full~tlme and part~tlme 

positions the applicant Intends to create; the proposed living wage or salary (at least 200 

percent of the Federal Poverty Level for a family of two, 1:1t Its hourly basis) for all employees 

pursuant to MOL 125,3601, MOL 125,3502, MCL 125,3504, article VII,§ 34 Construction of 

constitution and law concerning counties, townships, cities, VIiiages and article VII, § 22 

Charters, resolutions, ordinances; enumeration of powers of the Michigan Constitution, the 

applicant Intends to pay employees, unless otheiwlse prohibited by state law; whether the 

applicant has articulated plans and strategies to recruit, hire and mentor for career 

advancement, a percentage of diverse residents from the City of Pontiac, Including those 

residents who are veterans, low Income and/or have a prior controlled substance record 

(excluding distribution of a controlled substance to a minor): a staff training and education .. 
plan that the applicant wlll provide to employees: 9:n explanation, with supporting factual 

,data, of the economic benefits to the City and the !ob creation for local residents to be 

,achieved by the establishment: short and long~term goals and objectives: and whether the 

applicant has articulated plans to provide employee health and welfare benefit plans, 

Including, but hbt limited to, sick leave, maternity leave, and paternity leave, The appllaant 

shall maintain and provide daia to the City Clerk supporting Its staffing plan which shall be 

considered at the time of renewal of any permit Issued pursuant to this ordinance to 

determine aompllance. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be ten 

(10) points. 

(8) Planned philanthropic Initiatives and community Improvement programs aimed at the 

City of Pontiac, which may Include a $1 1000 donatlo n to a fund administered by the City 

used to promote social equity In the City of Pontls.o, a negatively Impacted community, by 

promoting advocacy around criminal justice Issues related to marlhuana prohibition, 

supporting youth who have been negatively Impacted by the war on drugs as It relates to 

the prohibition of marlhuana,. and community education and outreach on adult ... use 

marlhuana In general. The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be ten 

(10) points, 



(9) Whether the applicant received condltlonal approval for a medical marlhuana 

provisioning center permit pursuant to City of Pontiac's Medical Marlhuana Facllltles 

Ordinance, Article XXX, Seotlon 26,1491 et seq., Is not currently In default of compllanoe 

with Article XXX, and has received site plan approval from the City's Community 

Development Department and has started construction of the medical marlhuana 

provisioning center subject to receipt of a valid building permit from the City not less than 

30 days prior to the application for Marlhuana Retailer or Social ~qulty Retailer permit. The 

maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be twenty (20) points, 

(1 O) VVhether the applicant has rehabilitated and/or redeveloped within three (3) years 

before the submittal of the applloatlon under this ordinance, or wlll rehabilitate and/or 

redevelop, an existing building by demollshlng and rebuilding or completely renovating a 

bulldlng that has been vacant or had been vacant as registered with the City for one (1) year 

or more, The maximum nun,ber of scoring points In this category shall be ten (10) points, 

(11) \/Vhether the· appllcant has rehabllltated and/or redeveloped within three (3) years 

before the submittal of the application under this ordinance, or will rehabllltate and/or 

redevelop, an existing building by demol!shlng and rebulldlng or completely renovating a 

building that has been cited as bllghted or dangerous or had been cited as blighted or 

dangerous (as such term Is defined In the City's Code of Ordinances), The maximum 

number of scoring points In this category shall be ten (1 O) points, 

(12) Whether an applicant proposes a social equity plan that promotes and encourages 

social equity participation and ownership In the marlhuana Industry by persons who reside 

In dlsproportfonately Impacted communltles In those Michigan communities designated by 

the State cf Michigan, who have been dlsproportlonately lmpaoted by marijuana prohibition 

and enforcement, and to posltlvely Impact those communities, In accordance with MCL 

333,27958(1)0), The maximum number of scoring points In this category shall be fifteen 

(15) points, 

(13) Whether an applicant demonstrates social equity participation and greater than 50% 

ownership by persons who reside In disproportionately Impacted communities In those 

Michigan communities designated by the State of Michigan, who have been 

dlsproportlonately Impacted by marijuana prohibition and enforcement, and to posltlvely 



Impact those communities, In accordance with MCL 333,27958(1 )0), The maximum number 

of scoring points In this category shall be fifteen (15) points, 

(g) Overall scoring and ranking shall be conducted and applied by the Clerk on the basis of 

assigned points from zero (0) points to one hundred and sixty five (165) points with the lowest 

overall total score as zero (0) points and the highest possible total score being one hundred and 

sixty five (165) points, 

(h) At the concluslon of the twenty-one (21) day appllcatlon period, the Clerk shall begin 

processing applications for permits to operate retailer establishments, awarding conditional 

permits to the eighteen (18) highest $coring applicants, In the event of an evaluation scorlng tie, 

which causes there to be more than eighteen (18) appllol:\nts who achieve scores sufficient to 

qualify for a permit, the scorlng~tled applicants wlll be entered Into a random draw and the tie wlll 

be resolved through a bllnd lottery drawing to determine which · applicant wlll receive 

recommendation for approval. Those applications randomly selected shall be ellglble to receive 

a permit to operate a Retaller, In the event that the number of Retailer permits falls below the 

maximum number authorized under this ordinance, the clerk shall not be required to score 

applicants, Instead, the clerk shall evaluate appllcatlons In the order that they are submitted and 

shall award permits for Retallers to an applicant who submits a complete appllcatlon, receives 

the approvals required In this section, and meets the requirements of this ordinance, However, In 

no event shall the number of Reta!ler permits exceed the maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance, 

(I) At the conoluslon of the twenty-one (21) day application period, the Clerk shall begin 

proceeslng applications for permits to operate Class A Mlorobuslnesses, awarding conditional 

permits to the five (5) highest scoring applicants, In the event of an evaluation soaring tie, which 

causes there to be more than five (5) appllc~nts who achieve scores sufficient to qualify for a 

permit, the soorlng~tled applicants will be entered Into a random draw and the tie wlll be resolved 

through a blind lottery drawing to determine which applicant wlll receive recommendation for 

approval. Those applications randomly selected shall be ellglble to receive a permit to operate a 

Class A Micro business, In the event that the number of Class A Mlcrobuslness permits falls below 

the maximum number authorized under this ordinance, the Clerk shall not be required to score 

applicants, Instead, the Clerk shall evaluate applloatlons In the order that they are submitted and 

shall award permits for Class A Microbuslnesses to an ElPpllcant who submits a complete 

26 



appllcatlon, receives the approvals required In this section, and meets the requirements of this 

ordinance, However, In no event shall the number of Class A Mlorobuslness permits exceed the 

maximum number authorized under this ordinance, 

U) At the conclusion of the twentywone (21) day application period, the Clerk shall begin 

processing applications for permits to operate Designated Consumption Establishments, 

awarding condltlonal permits to the three (3) highest scoring applicants for the North of Huron 

locations. In the event of an evaluation soaring tie, which causes there to be more than three (3) 

applicants who achieve scores sufficient to qualify for a permit, the scorlng~tled appllcants wlll be 

entered Into a random draw and the tie will be resolved through a blind lottery drawing to 

determine which applicant will receive recommendation for approval, Those applications 

randomly selected shall be ellglble to receive a permit to operate a Designated Consumption 

Establishment. In the event that the number of Designated Consumption Establishment permits 

falls below the maximum number authorized under this ordlnanca, the Clerk shall not be requlred 

to score appllcants, Instead, the Clerk shall evaluate applications In the order that they are 

submitted and shall award permits for Designated Consumption Establlshment to an applicant 

who submits a complete appllcatlon, receives the approvals required In this section, and meets 

the requirements of this ordinance, However, In no event shall the number of Designated 

Consumption Est~bllshment permits exceep the maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance, 

(k) At the conclusion of the twenty~one (21) day appllcatlon period, the Clerk shall begin 

processing appllcatlons for permits to operate Designated Consumption Est~bllshments, 

awarding conditional permits to the three (3) highest scoring applicants for the South of Huron 

locations. In the event of an evafuatlon scoring tie, which causes there to be more than three (3) 

applicants who achieve scores sufficient to qualify for a permit, the soorlng~tled applicants wlll be 

entered Into a random draw and the tie wlll be resolved through a blind lottery drawing to 

determine which applicant wlll receive recommendation for approval. Those applications 

randomly selected shall be eligible to receive a permit to operate a Designated Consumption 

Establlshment. In th~ event that the number of Designated Consumption Establishment permits 

falls below the maximum number authorized under this ordinance, the Clerk shall not be required 

to score applicants. Instead, the Clerk shall evaluate applications In the order that they are 

submitted and shall award permits for Deslgn~ted Consumption Establishment to an applicant 

who submits a complete appllcatlon, receives the, approvals required In this section, and meets 

27 



the requirements of this ordinance. However, In no event shall the number of Designated 

Consumption Establishment permits exceed the maximum number authorized under this 

ordinance, 

(I) At the conoluslon of the twenty~one (21) day application period, the Clerk shall begin 

processing applications for permits to operate Soclal Equity Retaller establishments, awarding 

conditional permits to the six (8) highest scoring applicants, In the event of an evaluation scoring 

tle, whloh causes there to be more than six (6) applicants who achieve scores sufficient to quallfy 

for a permit, the soorlng"tled applicants wlll be entered Into a random draw and the tie will be 

resolved through a blind lottery drawing to determine which appllcant will receive recommendation 

for approval, Those applications randomly selected shall be eligible to receive a permit to operate 

a Social Equity Retailer, In the event that the number of Social Equity Retailer permits falls 

below the maximum number authorized under this ordinance, the clerk shall not be required to 

score applicants, Instead, the clerk shall evaluate applications In the order that they are submitted 
' 

and shall award permits for Social Equity Retailers to an applicant who submits a compl~te 

application, receives the approvals required In this section, and meets the requirements of this 

ordinance. However, In no event shall the number of Social Equity Retailer permits exceed the 

maximum number authorized under this ordinance, · 

(m) The Clerk wlll grant a flnal permit to a retailer, social equity retaller, Class A mlcrobuslness 

and designated consumption establishment If the applicant obtains flnal site plan approval and 

special land U$e approval within e months of receiving a conditional permlt, obtains an operating 

permit from the City and an operating license from the Department within 18 months after the 

condltlonal permit Is granted, and enters Into a written agreement with the City confirming that the 

marlhuana establishment will operate In accordance with the business plans, bulldlng plans, 

design standards, social equity plans and all other operational standards described by the 

applicant In the application matertals submitted. The agreement shall further provide that If the 

establlshment breaches the agreement, then the City may revoke authorization of the 

establishment following notice and a public hearing, and that In such event, the City shall be 

entltled to Injunctive relief barring further operation of the establishment In the City, An extension 

of 6 months to obtain an operating permit from the Olly and an operating license from the 

Department may be granted In the discretion of the Clerk upon a showing of good cause for the 

delay, 

:Z8 



(n) Nothing In thls section Is Intended to confer a property or other right, duty, prlvllege or Interest 

In a permit of any klnd or nature whatsoever, Including, but not llmlted to, any clalm of entitlement. 

(o) The Clerk may engage professlonal expert consultant assistance In performing the Clerk's 

duties and respons\bllltles under this Ordinance, 

Seo, 14, Soclal Equity Retailers 

(a) The City has created a permit process to allow state social equity qualifiers to apply for 

and be awarded social equity retailer permits In.zoning districts designated In the City zoning 

ordinance, The City shall permit sh< (6) five (6) social equity retailer licenses for social equity 

appllcants, Including franchisees, who demonstrate and document 51 % or more ownership by 

soclal equity qualifying applicants, Including ownership structure of the entity that Identifies the 

ownership percentage held by each stakeholder, 

(b) Social equity applicants for social equity retaller permits may apply for other available 

adult-use permits lncludlng retailer establlshment permits, except they may not apply for a Class 

A mlcrobuslness, safety compliance facility or secure transporter permit. 

Sec. 16. Odor Control. 

(a) No Marlhuana 13uslness, permlttee, person, tenant, occupant, llcensee, landlord or 

property owner shall permit the release of marlhuana odors from any origin to cause obvious 

odors emanating from the premises In which they derived and Interfere with the reasonable and 

comfortable use and enjoyment of another's property. Whether or not a marlhuana odor Interferes 

with the reasonable and comfortable use and enjoyment of ~mother's property shall be determined 

by the objective standards of a reasonable person of normal sensitivity. 

(b) Marlhuana Businesses shall use sufficient procedures to prevent smoke, odor, debris,· 

dust, fluids and other substances from escaping the premises of the Marlhuana Business, If any 

smoke, odor, debris, dust, fluids or other substances leave the Marlhuana Suslness In a 

detectable amount sufficient to Interfere with, the reasonable and comfortable use and 

enjoyment of adjacent property, or that causes damage to property, the permlttee for the 

Marlhuana Business and the owner of the premises shall be jointly and severally liable for such 

conditions and shall be responsible for Immediate, full cleanup EJnd c'orrectlon of such condition. 

The permlttee shall properly dispose of all such materials, and other substances In a safe, 

sanitary, and secure manner In compliance with all federal and state laws and regulations, and 

this chapter, 

29 



1. A plan for ventilation of the Marlhuana Business that describes the ventllatlan 

systems that will be used to prevent any odor of marlhuana off the premises of the 

business, Such plan shall also Include all ventllatlon systems used to control the 

environment for the plants and describe how such systems operate with the systems 

preventing any odor leavlng the premls_es, For marlhuana Infused products, such plan 

shall also Include all ventllatlon systems used to mitigate noxious gases or other fumes 

ueed or created as part of the production process, 

2, Cultivated, produced, or distributed by a Marlhuana Business, A Marlhuana 

Business shall be vet1tila!ed so that the odor of rnarlhuana cannot be detected by a person 

with a t1ormal sense of smell at the exterior of the Marlhuana Business or at any adjoining 

use or property, 

3, Sufficient measures and means of preventing smoke, odor, debris, dust, fluids and 

other substances from exiting a Marihuana Business must be provided at all times, In the 

event that any odors, debris, dust, fluids or other substances exit a marlhuana 

establishment, the owner of the subject premises ~nd the permlttee shall be jointly and 

sev(:lrally liable for such conditions and shall be responsible for Immediate, full clean~up 

and correction of such condition, The Marlhuana Business shall properly dispose of all 

such materials, Items ~nd other substances In a aafe, sanitary and secure m~mner and In 
aocordanoo with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulatlons. 

Seo. 16. Social Equity 

(a) A permltee ~emon ar ontlty ro~g-more than $1010GO,OO In contract value or 

benefit fi:em tRC City must use good .. falth efforts In hiring employees who have been negatively 

lmpaoted by marlhuana prohibition. Adult~use recreational marlhuana businesses should use 

good~falth efforts to hire and retain 26 percent of Its employees who are low lncorne or live In the 

City of Pontiac. 

S~o. 17, Clas$ A Microbusinesses 

(a) A Class A mlcrobuslness Is subject to all applicable provisions In this Ordinance related 

to growers, processors, and retailers. 

30 



(b) All Class A Mlcrobuslnesses, shall comply with all applicable requirements of the City of 

Pontiac's zoning· ordinance except where otherwise specified In this Ordinance, 

(c) All Class A Mlcrobuslnesses shall be classified as Special Land Uses In the permitted 

zoning districts, 

(d) A masonry screen wall shall be provided along all property lines abutting property that ls 

zoned for residential 1..1se1 subject to the requirements of the Pontiac Code of Ordinances, 

(e) Class A Mlcrobualnesses are prohibited If the location Is within 1,000 feet from any pre .. 

existing School; (I) The distance separation requirement set forth above shall be measured from 

nearest property line of the Business Location to the nearest properly llne of the parcel on which 

the listed use Is located1 regardless of ownership of property or Permltlee. A Glass A 

Mlorobuslnecc shall not ope~A-tAe--same-pwoel as any.-Gtlie!!-Marlhuana 13uslnocs. 

Sec. 18. Des1gnated Consumption Establishments. 

(a) All Designated Consumption Establlshments shall comply with all applicable requirements 

of the City of Pontiac's zoning ordinance, 

(b) Designated Consumption 8stabllshments shall be limited to C~2 Downtown Adult .. LJse 

Marlhuana Business Overlay District as Identified ln the City zoning ordinance and on the City 

Zoning Map, with three Designated Consumption Establishments permitted north of Huron Streat 

and three Designated Consumption Establishment$ permitted south of Huron Street. 

(o) Designated Consumption Establishments shall be classified as Speclal Land Uaes In the 

permitted zoning dlstrlots, 

(d) A masonry screen wall shall be provided along all property lines abutting property that Is 

zoned for residential use1 subject to the requirements of the Pontiac Code of Ordinances, 

(e) Designated Consumption Establlehments are prohibited If the location ls within 1,000 feet 

from any pre-exlstlng School; (I) The distance separation requirement set forth above shall be 

31 



measured from nearest property llne of the Business Location to the nearest property line of the 

parcel on which the listed use Is located, regardless of ownership of property or Permlttee, 

(0 A Designated Consumption Establlshment shall: 

(1) Install and maintain an operable ventilation and flltratlon ayatem to remove smoke to 

the outside of the building and ellmlnate odor at the property llne of the premises: 

(2) Prominently dtsplay a sign near the entrance of the business which carries the followlng 
warning: 

WARNING: Marlhuana use by pregnant or breastfeeding women, or by women 
planning to become pregnant, may result In fetal Injury, preterm bfrth, low birth weight, 
or developmental problems for the child. 

Sac. 19. Marlhuana Business Co;Locatlon and Stacking, 

(a) Separate Marlhuana Business grower, processor, reta1!er1 Class A mlcrobuslness, and 

designated consumption establishment uses, shall be permitted lo operate at the same location 

subject to permit approval for each use from the City, Establishments operating at the same 

location must have permit approval for each Marlhuana Business type and use described above, 

(b) Consistent with the MRTMA and the Rules, applicants for Class C grower permits shall be 

allowed to stack and receive multiple Class C grower permlts1 and to operate under each permit 

In a single establishment. 

Sac. 20. Transfer or Location Prohibited; Tranafer or Ownarshlp and Assets. 

(a) Transfer of Location Prohibited, Permlttees may not transfer a permit Issued under this 

ordinance to a different location. 

(b) Transfer of Ownership or Ass~ts. Permlttees may apply to the Clerk to transfer ownership 

or assets of a perm!ttee's business and the permit Issued under this ordinance to a different 

Individual or entity, subject to receiving In advance written approval from the Clerk and the 

Department pursuant to the MRTMA and the Rules, In order to request City approval to transfer 

ownership or assets and a permit to a different Individual or entity, the permlttee must make a 

written request to the Clerk, Indicating the current permlttee and the proposed permlttee, The 

proposed permlttee shall submit a complete application to the Clerk, and the Clerk shall grant the 

request so long as the proposed permlttee meets all requirements outlined In this Ordinance and 

32 



the Department authorizes the transfer pursuant to the MRTMA and the Rules, A sale or transfer 

of an ownership Interest of a social equity applicant shall be at a price no less than fair market 

value and the buyer or transferee shall be qualified as a soclal equity applicant. 

(c) With submlsslon of a complete transfer of ownership or assets appllcatlon1 the proposed 

permlttee for an ownership or asset transfer shall pay a nonrefundable appllcatlon fee of 

$5,000.00, In order to offset costs of the City associated with review of the proposed permlltee1s 

quallflcatlons for a permitted marlhuana business operation, 

Sec, 21. Permits Generally 

(a) Permlttees shall report any material change In the required Information to the Clerk within 

twenty four (24) hour and shall report any non~materlal change In the required Information to the 

Clerk within ten (10) business days of the change, Failure to do so may result In a fine 1 suspension 

or revocation of the license. 

(b) Permit approval shall not be effective, and no Marlhuana Business may operate, unless 

the Marihuana Business has obtained a State License, the site of the proposed use and 

proposed structure for the Marlhuana Business has zoning approval for such use, and the 

proposed final site plan and special land use has been approved by the Planning Commission, 

sec. 22. ierm of Marihuana Business Permit. 

(a) Approval of a permit shall be for a period of one calendar year subject to continued 

compllance with this ordinance, lhe City Code1 MRTMA and the Rules, 

(b) .Each permit for that current year shall be displayed In a conspicuous spot In the.locatlon, 

(o) A permlttee shall remove any expired permit on display and replace It with the current permit. 

A permlttee shall not attempt nor act In any fraudulent manner In regard to the display of any 

permit. 

Sec. 23, · Closing of Marihuana Business, 

(a) A permlttee that closes a Marlhuana Business must comply with the requirements 1s~ued 

by the Michigan Cannabis Regulatory Agency, 

33 



(b) Within thirty (30) days of a permlttee ceasing operations, written notification must be 

provided to the Olly Clerk.(c) The permlttee shall furnish to the City a current forwarding address, 

phone number and email for all permlttees, 

(d) The permlttee shall surrender Its Marlhuana Business permit to the City upon the 

expiration of the thirty (30) days' notice to the City, 

Sec. 24. Annual Marlhuana Business l'ermlt R~newal. 

(a) Apptlcatlon for a permit renewal shall be made In wrltlng to the Clerk at least 30 days prlor 

to the expiration of an existing permit. Fallure to submit a completed application for renewal of 

an exlstlng permit along with the required renewal fee to the City Clerk on our before the license 

expiration date shall be grounds for the revocation or suspension of a permit. Any authorized 

establishment that has not timely submitted a renewal appllcatlon as required herein shall 

suspend all business operations until such time as a renewal permit has been obtained, 

(b) An appllcatlon for permit renewal ehall be made under oath on forms provided by the Clerk, 

(c) An appllcatlon for permit renewal shall be accompanied by a renewal fee of $51000,00 for 

each permit to help defray administrative and enforcement coets of the City associated with the 

operation of the Marlhllana Business. 

(d) Upon receipt of a completed appllc'.3tlon for renewal of a permit meeting the requirements of. 

this ordinance and payment of the permit renewal fee, the Clerk shall refer a copy of the renewal 

appllcatlon to the fire department and the Community Development Department, planning 

division, and other appropriate City departments and officials for review, 

(e) No application for a permit renewal shall be approved unless: 

34 

(1) The fire department and the Community Development Department, planning division, 

and other appropriate departments have, within the past calendar year, Inspected the 

proposed location for compllance with all state and local building, electrical, fire, mechanical 

and plumbing requirements, 

(2) The Community Development Department, plannlng division, and other relevant 

departments have confirmed that the location complies with the zoning ordinance, 



35 

(3) The permlttee possesses the necessary State Operating Licenses In good standing 

with the Department. 

(4) The applicant has operated the Marlhuana Business In accordance with the conditions 

and requlrnments of this ordinance and the City Code, 

(6) The permlttee has not been determined to be a public nuisance, 

(6) An exp!anatlon1 with supporting factual data, that the operations of the business have 

been consistent with the plans submitted with Its application for a permit, Including the 

staffing pll:\n and proof of an Insurance policy covering the business and naming the City of 

Pontiac, Its elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents, as additional Insured 

parties, primary and non~contrlbutory available for the payment of any damages arising out 

of an act or omission of the applicant or Its stakeholders, agents, employees, or 

subcontractors, In the amount of: 

a, at least Two MIiiion Dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage; 

b, at least Two MIiiion Dollara ($2,000,000) for Injury to one (1) person; and 

o, at feast Two MIiiion Dollars ($2,000,000) for Injury to two (2) or more person 

resultlng from the same occurrence, 

The Insurance policy underwriter must have a minimum A.M,' Best Company Insurance 

ranking of B+, consistent with state law. The policy shall provide that the City shall be 

notified by the Insurance carrier thirty (30) days In advance of any cancellation or 

reduction In coverages, 

(7) An explanation, with supporting factual data, of the efforts and success achieved by 

the social equity plan of the business to promote and encourage participation In the 

marlhuana Industry by local residents that have been disproportionately Impacted by 

marlhuana prohibition and enforcement, and the positive Impact of the'soclal equity plan on 

local residents. 



(9) The City Treasurer has confirmed that the applicant and each stakeholder Is not In 

default to the City for any property tax1 special assessment, utility charges, fines, fees or 

other financial obligation owed to the City. 

' 
(10) The City has reviewed the appl!catlon and determined that the applicant has satisfied 

the requirements of this Ordinance with respect to the crlrnlnal background check and 

security plan, 

(11) Unless the apptlcant shows good cause, the appllcant shall demonstrate to the City 

Clerk that the applicant was open and conducting business for a minimum of twenty (20) 

hours per week during each end every week of the prlor year, The term 11good cause" shall 

mean substantial grounds, such as an emergency, fire damage, or other unforeseeable 

circumstances that prevented the appllcant from conducting business for a minimum of 

twenty (20) hours per week during each and every week of the prior year, Economic or 

financial decisions, or Inability to secure capital or financial resources that prevented an 

applicant from conducting business for a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week during the 

prior year shall not be good cause, 

(f) If wr]Hen approval Is given by each department or entity Identified In this sectlo11, and the 

Clerk determines that the E1ppl1cant has satisfied sul:lsectlons (a), (b), (0) 1 (d) and (e) of this 

Section, then the Clerk shall renew ihe permit of the applicant. 

Sec, 25, Danial, Nonrenewal, Susp~rislon, or Revocation of MarlhUi:tlia Business 

Parmlt; Basis for Action; Appeal. 

(a) Each Marlhuana Business within the City for which a permit Is gra~ted shall be operated 

and maintained In accordance with all applicable City, State and federal laws, rules, a11d 

regulations. Any permit Issued under this Ordinance may be revoked or suspe11ded by the City 

after written notice and an administrative hearing if a City official finds and determines that 

grounds for revocation or suspension exist. Any grounds'for revocation ot suspension of a permit 

must be provided to the permlttee at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing by first 

class mall to the address given on the application or any address provided to the Clerk in writing 

subsequent to the filing of an application, The Clerk shall notify an applicant of the reasons for 

denial of an application for a permit, for permit renewal, or for suspension or revocation of a permit, 

36 



or any adverse decision under this ordinance and provide the applicant or permlttee an 

administrative hearing with the opportunity to be heard. 

(b) In addition to any other reasons set forth In this ordinance, the City may refuse to Issue a 

permit, may refuse to grant renewal of a perrnlt, and rnay su13pend or revoke a permit pursuant to 

Pontiac City Ordinance sections 1"24 or for any of the following reasons: 

37 

(1) A v\olatlon of any provision of this Ordinance, Including, but not limlted to, the failure 
' to provide the Information required by this Ordinance; 

(2) Any disqualifying convlctlon or pattern of convictions by the permlttee or any 

stakeholder of the perrnlttee Including any conviction of any felony or any misdemeanor 

Involving controlled substances, theft, or dishonesty by the applicant, permltee1 stakeholder, 

or any person holding an ownership Interest In the licensee; 

(3) Failure of the permlttee to obtain or maintain a State License or approval pursuant to 

MRTMA and MMFLA; 

(4) Commission of fraud or rnlsrepresentatlon or the making of a false statement by the 

applicant, permlttee, or any stakeholder of the applicant or permlttee, whlle engaging In any 

activity for which this Ordinance requires a permit; 

(5) The Marlhuana Business Is determined by the City to have become a i:,ubllo nuisance 

or otherwise I~ operating In a manner detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare: 

' 
(6) Fallure of the permltee to maintain the property causing a blighted or other condition In 

vlolatlon of any City ordinance, including but not limited to, Ord, No, 2356, 8-9~18, ot In 

violation of any state law, Including but not limited to, MCL 125,538 to 126,542, 

(7) Any default In the payment of any charges, taxes, or fees, to the City If not cured upon 

thirty (30) days following notice sent by eleclronlc means or mall to the address of the 

Marlhuana Buslness, This cure period does not apply to scoring of lnltlal applications for 

Retaller, Social Equity Retaller, Class A Mlcrobuslness and Designated Consumption 

f:stabllshment permits: 

(8) Violation of any State law appllcable to Marlhuana Buslness~s. 

(9) Fa!lure to obtain or maintain a certificate of occupancy from the Bulldlng Department; 



(1 O) Fallure of the permltee to obtain or maintain a permit or to renew a permit from the City 

Clerk; or 

(11) The establlshment~'s approved site plan Is determined to be In substantial 

vlolatlon by the City, 

(c) Appeal of denial of an appllcat!on, denial of renewal, or revocation or suspension of a permit: 

Any applicant or permlttee aggrieved by the denial, non"renewal, suspension or revocation of a 

permit or adverse decision under this ordinance may appeal to the Clerk, by flllng with the Clerk, 

within fourteen (14) days after notice of the action oomplalned of has been malled or eMmalled to 

the applicant or to permltlee1s last known address on the records of the Clerk, a written statement 

selling forth fully the grounds for the appeal. 'The Clerk shall appoint a hearing officer to hear and 

evaluate the appeal and make a written recommendation and report to the Clerk. The Clerk shall 

review the report and recommendation of the hearing officer and Issue a written decision, The 

Clerk's decision may be appealed to the Marlhuana Business Commission by flllng an appeal In 

writing to the Marlhuana Business Commission no later than thirty (30) days after the Clerk's 

decision, ihe review on appeal of a denlal, non"renewal, suspension, or revocation or adverse 

action shall be by the Marlhuana Business Commission pursuant to this ordinance, 'The 

Marlhuana Business Commission shall overturn a decision or finding of the Clerk If It finds such 

decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and/or not supported by material, substantial, and 

competent facts on the whole record considered by the Clerk In arriving at such decision or finding, 

Any decision by the Marlhuana Business Commission on an appeal shall be final for purposes of 

judlclal review, The Clerk may engage professional consultants to assist With the review and 

scoring of applications under lhls section, 

(d) F ollowlng the denial of a permit to an applicant for a retaller permit, social equity retailer 

permit, Class A mlcrobuslness permit or designated consumption establishment permit, ahd any 

subsequent appeal durh1g the recommendation and Issuance process, the Clerk may move lo 

recommend th~ appllcatlon with the next highest number of scoring points as determined In the 

appllcatloli process to be awarded a permit. 

(e) ihe City Clerk shall notify the Michigan Cannabis Regulatory Agency of all renewal 

appllcatlons which are renewed or denied, and all permits that are suspended or revoked, 

38 



(f) A permltee whose renewal application ls denied, must submit a new application as a new 

applicant. 

Sec. 26. Penalties; temporary suspension of a permit. 

(a) The City may require an applicant or permlttee of a Marlhuana Business to produce 

documents, records, or 1:1ny other material pertinent to the Investigation of an applicant or 

permlttee or to an alleged violation of this Ordinance or state law and rules. Failure to provide the 

required material may be grounds for application denial, or permit suspension or revocation, 

(b) Any person In vlolatlo,n of any provision of this Ordinance, Including the operation of a 

Marlhuana SuslMss without a permit shall be responsible for a clvll Infraction and shall be subject 

to a civil fine and costs, Increased civil fines may be Imposed for a repeat vlolatl?n, As used In 

this Ordinance "repeat violation" shall mean a second or any subsequent Infraction of the same 

requirement or provision committed by a person or establishment wlthln any twenty~four (24) 

month period, Unless otherwise specifically provided In this Ordinance, the penalty schedule ls 

as follows: 

(1) Five Hundred Dollars ($500), plus costs, for the first vlolatlo.n; 

I 

(2) One Thousand Dollars ($1,000), plus costs, for a repeat v!olatlon; 

(3) Three Thousand Dollars ($S,OOO), plus costs for any repeat violation that 

continues for more than one day, 

(c) ,he City-may temporarily suspend a Marlhuana Business permit without a prior hearing If the 

City finds that publlc safety or welfare require~ emergency action affecting the publla health, 

safety, or welfare, The City shall cause the temporary suspension by lssulng a suspension notice 

In oonnectlon with Institution of proceedings for notloe and a hearing, 

(d) If the City temporarlly suspends a permit without a prior hearing, the permlttee Is entitled to a 

hearing within thirty (30) days after the suspension no.lice has been served on the permlttee or 

posted on the permitted premises, The hearing shall be llmlted to the Issues oiled In the 

suspension notice, 

(e) If the City does not hold a hearing within thirty (30) days after the date the suspension was 

served on the permlttee or posted on the permitted premises, then the suspended permit shall be 

automatloally reinstated and the suspension vacated, 

39 



(f) The penalty provisions herein are not Intended to foreclose any other remedy or sanction that 

might be available to, or Imposed by the City, Including crlmlnal prosecution, 

Sec, 27. Severabllity Clause, 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance be held Invalid or 

unconstltutlonal1 the remaining provisions of this ordinance shall remain ln full force and effect. 

Sec. 28, Effective Oate. 

This Ordinance shall become effective: (a) 30 days followlng the date of adoption, (b) the effective 

date of the amendment to ordinance #2360 (removing the prohibition of marlhuana 

establishments); or (c) the effective date of the zoning code text amendments permitting Adultw 

Use Marlhuana Business land uses, whichever Is later. 

Sec, 29. Publication. 

40 



#5 

ORDINANCE 







ARTICLE V. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

2-356-2-370 Reserved. 

DIVISION 2. PLANNING COMMISSION 

.2-371 .. Scope, .. Purpose.and .. intent. ............................................................................................................................................................................................. . 

This division is adopted pursuant to the authority granted to the city under the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, 

Public Act No. 33 of 2008 (MCL 125.3801 et seq.) to establish a City Planning Commission with the powers, 

duties and limitations provided by those Acts and subject to the terms and conditions of this division and any 

future amendments to this division. 

The purpose of this division is to provide that the City of Pontiac shall hereby confirm the establishment under 

the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, Public Act No. 33 of 2008 (MCL 125.3801, et seq.) to establish the 

appointments, terms, and membership of the city planning commission; to identify officers and the minimum 

number of meetings per year of the city planning commission; and to prescribe the authority, powers and duties 

of the city planning commission. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 1, 5-20-11) 

.2-372. Composition.; .. terms .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... . 

(a) Under and by virtue of the authority in Act No. 33 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2008 (MCL 125.3801 et 

seq.), there is created a city planning commission, formerly established under the former Act No. 285 of the 

Public Acts of Michigan of 1931 (MCL 125.31 et seq.). The city planning commission shall consist of six (6) 

members plus one (1) ex officio member for a total of seven (7) members. All Planning Commission Members, 

including the ex-officio member, shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval by a majority vote of the 

City Council, as provided in state law. 

(b) City planning commission members shall be qualified electors of the city (i.e., a United States citizen who 

is eighteen (18) years old, and who has been a resident of the State of Michigan for six (6) months and a resident 

of the City for at least thirty (30) days), except that one city planning commission member may be an individual 

who is not a qualified elector of the City. 



(c) An appointed member of the city planning commission shall hold no other municipal office, except that one 

member may be a member of the zoning board of appeals or a member of the joint fire administrative board, 

except one ex officio member. No elected officer or employee of the City is eligible to be a member of the city 

planning commission, except one ex officio member. 

(d) The term of each appointed member shall be three (3) years and shall serve for the terms herein specified, 

unless removed before the expiration of the term pursuant to this division or state law and except as provided in 

subsection (f) below. 

(e) Members of the city planning commission shall represent, insofar as is possible, different professions or 

occupations. By way of example and to the extent practicable, members should come from the economic, 

governmental, educational, and social development segments of the City of Pontiac, in accordance with the major 

interests as they exist in the City of Pontiac, such as agricultural, natural resources, recreation, education, public 

health, government, transportation, industry, and commerce. The membership shall also be representative of the 

entire territory of the City of Pontiac to the extent practicable. 

(f) The terms of the six (6) members shall be for three (3) years and commence on July 1, 2011; provided, 

however, that three members of the first city planning commission to be appointed hereunder shall serve until 

June 30, 2012, two members until June 30, 2013, and two members until June 30, 2014. Thereafter all members 

shall be appointed for a term of three years and shall serve until their successors are appointed and qualified. 

The term of ex officio member shall be concurrent with the term of office of the Mayor of the City of Pontiac. A 

member will hold the position until a successor is appointed, although the mayor or the Emergency Manager, 

shall nominate an appointee three (3) months prior to the expiration of a sitting appointee's term for consideration 

as an appointee under the provisions of this division. 

(g) The ex officio member shall include the mayor, or a person appointed by him. 

(h) No member of the city planning commission shall receive any compensation as such. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 2, 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2236, § 1, 12-5-11) 

Cross references-Buildings and building regulations, ch. 22. 

State law references-Michigan Planning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3801 et seq. 



2-371. 

PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS 

City of Pontiac 

Municipal Code - Article V - Boards and 
Commissions 

Scope, purpose and intent. 

This division is adopted pursuant to the authority granted to the city under the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act, Public Act No. 33 of 2008 (MCL 125.3801 et seq.) to establish a City Planning 
Commission with the powers, duties and limitations provided by those Acts and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this division and any future amendments to this division. 

The purpose of this division is to provide that the City of Pontiac shall hereby confirm the establishment 
under the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, Public Act No. 33 of 2008 (MCL 125.3801, et seq.) to 
establish the appointments, terms, and membership of the city planning commission; to identify officers 
and the minimum number of meetings per year of the city planning commission; and to prescribe the 
authority, powers and duties of the city planning commission. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 1, 5-20-11) 

2-372. Composition; terms. 

a. Under and by virtue of the authority in Act No. 33 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2008 
(MCL 125.3801 et seq.), there is created a city planning commission, formerly established 
under the former Act No. 285 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1931 (MCL 125.31 et. 
seq.). The city planning commission shall consist of six (6) members plus one (1) ex officio 
member for a total of seven (7) members. All Planning Commission Members, including the 
ex officio member, shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval by a majority vote 
of the City Council, as provided in state law. 

b. City planning commission members shall be qualified electors of the city (i.e., a United 
States citizen who is eighteen ( 18) years old, and who has been a resident of the State of 
Michigan for six ( 6) months and a resident of the City for at least thirty (30) days), except 
that one city planning commission member may be an individual who is not qualified 
elector of the City. 

c. An appointed member of the city planning commission shall hold no other municipal 
office, except that one member may be a member of the zoning board of appeals or a 
member of the joint fire administrative board, except one ex officio member. No elected 
officer or employee of the City is eligible to be a member of the city planning commission, 
except one ex officio member. 

d. The term of each appointed member shall be three (3) years and shall serve for the terms 
herein specified, unless removed before the expiration of the term pursuant to this division 
or state law and except as provided in subsection (f) below. 

e. Members of the city planning commission shall represent, insofar as is possible, different 
professions or occupations. By way of example and to the extent practicable, members 
should come from the economic, governmental, educational, and social development 
segments of the City of Pontiac, in accordance with the major interests as they exist in the 
City of Pontiac, such as agricultural, natural resources, recreation, education, public 
health, government, transportation, industry, and commerce. The membership shall also 
be representative of the entire territory of the City of Pontiac to the extent practicable. 



f. The terms of the six (6) members shall be for three (3) years and commence on July 1, 
2011; provided, however, that three members of the first city planning commission to be 
appointed hereunder shall serve until June 30, 2012, two members until June 30, 2013, and 
two members until June 30, 2014. Thereafter all members shall be appointed for a term of 
three years and shall serve until their successors are appointed and qualified. The term of ex 
officio member shall be concurrent with the term of office of the Mayor of the City of 
Pontiac. A member will hold the position until a successor is appointed, although the mayor 
or the Emergency Manager, shall nominate an appointee three (3) months prior to the 
expiration of a sitting appointee's term for consideration as an appointee under the 
provisions of this division. 

g. The ex officio member shall include the mayor or a person appointed by him. 
h. No member of the city planning commission shall receive any compensation as such. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 2, 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2236, § 1, 12-5-11) 

Cross references-Buildings and building regulations, ch. 22. 
State law references- Michigan Planning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3801 et seq. 

2-373. Officers' election; meeting. 

a. The city planning commission shall elect its.chairman from among the appointed members 
and create and fill such other of its offices as it may determine. The term of chairman shall 
be one (1) year, with eligibility for reelection. 

b. The city planning commission shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month. 
c. The city planning commission shall comply with the Open Meetings Act. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 3, 5-20-11) 

2-374. Removal of city planning commission member vacancy. 

a. Members of the city planning commission may, after written charges and a public hearing 
occurring no sooner than ten ( 10) days after the preparation of written charges, be removed 
by the mayor for the following reasons: conflict of interest; inefficiency; neglect of duty; 
malfeasance, misfeasance or nonfeasance in office; lack of qualifications; incompetency; 
misconduct; conviction of a felony; or a violation of this charter (including the charter's 
conflict of interest provisions) or any job-related ordinance, mle or regulation. 

b. Members shall disclose of all potential conflicts of interest and may not vote on a matter 
for which the member has a conflict of interest. Failure to disclose potential conflicts of 
interest or voting on matters for which the member has a conflict of interest is considered 
malfeasance in office. 

c. In the case of the termination of membership of any member of the city planning 
commission before the expiration of his tenn, through resignation, removal or any other 
reason, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment by the mayor, subject to the approval by 
a maj01ity vote of the members of the city council, for the unexpired term of the member 
whose membership has terminated, as provided in state law. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 4, 5-20-11) 



2-375. City liability limited; expenditures. 

No liability shall be incurred by the city planning commission, nor shall any employee be 
hired or contract made with any person, except on the approval of the city planning 
commission by resolution. No expenditure of any funds shall be made unless such funds are 
first appropriated and set aside by the city planning commission. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 5, 5-20-11) 

2-376. Additional duties 

The City Planning Commission shall: 
a. Under the authority in Act No. 33 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2008 (MCL 125.3801 

et seq.), and other applicable planning statutes, the Planning Commission shall make a 
master plan as a guide for development within the City's planning jurisdiction; 

b. Keep a public record of all resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations, 
including, but not limited to, making all final agendas and minutes available on the City 
Planning Commission's website; and 

c. Make an annual written report to the Mayor and City Council of the City Planning 
Commission's operations and status of planning activities. 

d. Be exempted from preparing the capital improvement program in accordance with MCL 
125.3865. The capital improvement program shall be prepared by the Community 
Development Director, subject to final approval by the City Council. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 6, 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2298, § 1, 7-7-13) 

2-377. State regulations applicable. 

The city planning commission, except as provided in this division, shall be governed by the 
rules and regulations set forth in Act No. 33 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2008 (MCL 
125.3801 et seq.), as amended. The purpose of the city planning commission shall be the 
adoption of a city plan and a zoning ordinance for the control of the height, area, bulk, 
location and use of buildings and premises in the city. 

(Ord. No. 2222, § 2 (Exh. A), 5-20-11; Ord. No. 2224, § 7, 5-20-11) 



#6 

ORDINANCE 



Carlisle I Wortman 
A$$0CIATS$, INC:, 

117 NORTH FIRST STREET SUITE 70 ANN ARBOR, Ml 48104 734,662,2200 734,662,193'$ MX 

TO: Pontiac City Council 

FROM: Dick Carllsle, AICP, Planhlng Consultant for the City 

DATE: 

RE: 

Mark Yandrlck1 Planning Manager · 

February 81 2023 

Request for Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA-22-011) 
Lighthouse Campus Plan 
46156 Woodward Ave. 

Executive Summary 
Lighthouse, at 46156 Woodward, proposes a rezoning for their headquarters and adjacent parcels to the 
east between Woodward Avenue and Center Street. The rezoning for the western half to Local Business 
(C-1) and the eastern half to Office Business (C·0) allows the property owner to Incorporate some 
additional uses Into their campus, Including a grocery store and community service faclllty, 

Planning commission reviewed the proposal during a public hearing at theJr Wednesday, March 1, 2023 
meeting and recommended approval to City Council, 4-0. 

Proposal 
James Pappas, Fusco, Shaffer & Pappas, on behalf of Lighthouse, submitted a concept drawlng for 
prellmlnary site plan approval In October 2022, As depicted In the prellmlnary site plan, the organization 
ls seeking to expand an existing service location Into a multi-use campus, To move forward with this 
plan, the applicant has requested to make the following changes to zoning, as seen In the table below: 

Table 1.0, Zoning Map Amendment Request 
Parcel Number(s) Current Zoning Requested Change 

14-33-151-019 
c-o c-1 

West of Hovey Street 

14-33-152-001 
14-33-152-002 
14-33-152-003 
14-33-152-004 
14-33-152-005 R-1 C-0 
14-33-152-006 
14-33-152-007 
14-33-152-008 

East of Hovey Street 
Richard K, Carlisle, Pres/dent Douglas J, Lewan, E"xecut/ve Vice Pres/dent John L, tnos, Vice Pres/dent 

David Scurto, Principal BehJamln R, Carlisle, Principal sally M, Elrnlger, Prine/pa/ Craig Slrohg, Prine/po/ R, D011ald Wortman, Prine/pa/ 
Laura K, Kreps, Sen/or As:sac/ot(! Paul Montagne, Senior Assoc/ate, Megah Masson-Minock, Senior Assoc/ate 



Zoning Map Amendment: 46156 (Case ZMA·22-011) 
February 16, 2023 City Council Meeting 

The City of Pontiac Master Plan establishes future land use categories that are consistent with 
Lighthouse's proposed development. The Master Plan designates the west side of the proposed campus 
as an "Offlce/Hospltal/Healthcare District" and the east side of the campus as a 11Tradltlonal 
Neighborhood Residentlal District/' Both future land use categories encourage flexlblllty, They would 
permit offices, residences, and neighborhood Institutions where proposed, 

Exhibit A: Lighthouse's own Master Plan (Not Received City Approvals) 
"'--.___::'.\[$11 Wt~\ij~ r-l~i/l~U,$,![~twnufio 

f 

2 

i[ 

. -1~r~l1Uatll\,l°i>wurnili· . 
:~ 

. t~r~ 
iw-,,~, 



Zohlng Map Amehdment: 46156 {Case ZMA-22-011) 
February 161 2023 City Council Meetlhg 

The applicant proposes to re-zone the majority of the area, west of Hovey Street, to C-1, Local Business/ 
Residential Mixed Use, Indoor retall sales, a proposed use that Is indicated by the 11Soclal Supermarket/ 
are not permitted In the C-0 designation, which the subject site Is currently zoned. Further, the applicant 
proposes to re-zone the parcels east of Hovey Street to C-0, Residential Office, This change would allow 
a mix of residential with non-resldentlal Uses and Is therefore consistent with the preliminary site plan. 

The applicant will need to apply for a Site Plan for this project1 which wlll be contingent on the rezoning 
of these subject properties, 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on our analysis of the appllcant>s request, staff recommends approval to Planning Commission In 
their consideration of proposed changes to the districts zoning, 

Planning commission Recommendation 
Planning Commission reviewed the Zonlhg Map Amendment in a publlc hearing at their Wednesday, 
February 1st meeting. They discussed the scope of the project, and the Impact to the surrounding area, 
and also noted that the proposed Improvements would not be very noticeable to the Woodward 
Avenue corridor as the front section of the development along Woodward would be unchanged. 
Planning commission recommended approval of the Zoning Map Amendment to City Councll 4-0 

Since rely, 

CARUSLE/WORTMAN ASSOC,11NC 
Richard I<, Cilrllsll}, FAICP 
Past President/Senior Principal 

3 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 

Resolution to receive the first reading of An Ordinance to Amend Appendix B of the Municipal 
Code of the City of Pontiac Amending Article 2, Section 2.103- Zoning Map, to Change the Zoning 
Classifications for Specific parcels on Woodward Ave. (ZMA 22-011 for Lighthouse of Oaldand 
County at 46156 Woodward Ave,) · 

WHEREAS, the City is proposing an Ordinance to Amend Appendix B of the Municipal Code of the City 
of Pontiac Amending Article 2, Section 2.103- Zoning Map, to Change the Zoning Classifications for 
Specific parcels on Woodward Ave, (ZMA 22-011 for Lighthouse of Oakland County at 46156 
Woodward Ave,) 

NOW TIIBREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the first reading of an Ordinance to Amend Appendix B of 
the Municipal Code of the City of Pontiac Amending Al't:icle 2, Section 2.103- Zoning Map, to Change 
the Zoning Classifications for Specific parcels on Woodward Ave. (ZMA 22-011 for Lighthouse of 
Oakland County at 46.156 Woodward Ave,) is hereby received and read by the Pontiac City Council at the 
February 16, 2023 City Council meeting, 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO. ----
ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX B OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF PONTIAC, AMENDING ARTICLE 2, SECTION 2.103-ZONING MAP, TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS FOR SPECIFIC PARCELS ON 
WOODWARD A VE, 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendments. 

That the Zoning Map of the City of Pontiac, said map being incorporated by reference in 

the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Pontiac pursuant to Article 2 therefor, be and the same is 

hereby amended, changed, and altered so that hereafter the zoning classifications for the below 

legal descriptions shall be rezoned as follows: 

1. Existing C-0 Residential Office parcels to C--1 Local Business; 

2, Existing R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling parcels to C~l Local Business; 

3. Existing R-1 One Family Dwelling parcels to C-0 Residential Office, 

LOTS 118 AND 125 OF EASTERN ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE OF PONTIAC (NOW 

CITY OF PONTIAC), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN LIBER 1 

OF PLATS, PAGE 2, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, ALL OF LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, AND 

8, THE VACATED ALLEYADJACENT TO SAID LOTS, 1/2 OF VAC ALLEY ADJACENT 

TO LOTS 9 AND 10, ALL IN BLOCK 1 AND THAT PORTION OF HOVEY STREET (50 

FEET WIDE) OF THE MAP OF TREGENT AND STOCKWELL'S PLAT OF PONTIAC 

:MICHIGAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN LIBER 4 OF 

PLATS, PAGE 34, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS AND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST 



1/4 OF SECTION 33, T. 3 N., R.E 10 E,, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, 

MICHIGAN, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT ~OF

WA Y LINE OF COTTAGE STREET (60 FEET WIDE) AND THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF

WAY LINE OF WOODWARD A VENUE (WIDTH VARIES); THENCE N. 87°0715211 E. 656.45 

FEET ALONG THE SOUTHERLY RIGHTOF-WAY LINE OF COTTAGE STREET TO A 

POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CENTER STREET (60 FEET 

WIDE); THENCE S. 03°00148" E, 155,00 FEET (RECORD AND MEASURED) TO A POINT 

ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 10 IN SAID TREGENT AND STOCKWELL'S PLAT; 

THENCE S. 87°0610411 W. 122.49 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOTS 10 AND 9 TO 

A POINT ON THE WBSTERL Y LOT LINE OF SAID LOT 9; THENCE S. 02°44'37 11 E, 140.07 

FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGIIT~OF-WAY LINE OF PARK PLACE (89 

FEET WIDE); THENCE S. 87°04108 11 W, 211.50 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID HOVEY STREET; THENCE S. 02°2313211 E, 6,61 FEET; 

THENCE S. 87°07138 11 W. 115.00 FEET; THENCE N. 02°23'2611 W. 38,00 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 125 OF EASTERN ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE OF 

PONTIAC; THENCE ALONG SAID LINE S. 87°07'31 11 W. 207.75 FEET TO A POINT ON 

SAID EASTERLY RIGHT~OF-WAY LINE OF WOODVV:ARD AVENUE; THENCE N. 

02°52'55" W. 264.00 FEET (MEASURED AND RECORD) ALONG SAID EASTERLYRIGHT

OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Section 2. Repealer and Se-verability. 

All other parts and provisions of the Zoning Ordinance shall remain in effect, amended only as 

provided above. If any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be 

unconstitutional, void> illegal or ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, 

clause or provision declared to be unconstitutional, void or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part 

of this Ordinance, but the remainder of this Ordinance shall stand and be in full force and effect. 



Section 3. Effective Date 

The foregoing amendment to the City of Pontiac Zoning Map was approved and adopted by the 

City Council on ______ ...._, 2023, after a public hearing as req11ired pursllant to the 

Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended, The Ordinance shall be effective on 

________ , 2023, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 

Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Map Amendment in a publication in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the zoning district as required by Section 401 of Act 110 of 2006, as amended, 

However, this effective date shall be extended as necessary to comply with the requirements of 

Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED. 



C~RTIFICATION 

The foregoing is a true and complete copy of an Ordinance adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Pontiac, County Oakland, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City 

Council held on ___ day of ________ ,, 2023, and pubic notice of said meeting 

was given pursuant to and in accordance with the re,quirements of Act No. 267 of the Public Acts 

of 1976, as amended, being the Open Meetings Act, and the minutes of said meeting have been 

or will ~e made available as r~quired by said Act. 

Members Present: --------------------------

Members Absent: --------------------------

It was moved by Member __________ and suppo1ted by M~mber 

__________ to adopt the Ordinance, 

Members voting yes:------------------------,----

Members voting no: ________________________ _ 

Membel's abstaining: ________________________ _ 

The Ordinance was declared adopted by the Mayor and has been recorded with the City of 

Pontiac, 

ADOPTED: 

PUBLISHED: 

EFFECTIVE: 

Garland Doyle, City Clerk 

City of Pontiac, Michigan 



., 

AppDi.cation. for· Zoning M.ap 
Amend·me.nt . . ' . 

, City of Pont'iflc 
Off11Je of L~111d m:a a1\cl s1:l'wt,,1glt: Plt1nnlng 

47450 Woodward Av~,·Pontla1,J, Ml .48.342, 
'fl i48,;758.,ZU.OO fl 24,8,758,Z.8.Z7 

Pi<ope1•ty/;F1·oje(}t·A.d<l~·ess: 4~156 \h:f'oodward Ave, Office Us.e•Only 

$!dwell N1nnbe1·.: See-List'B'efow PF,Nuu:iJ~~r:. ___ . _· ______ _ 

Date: 
. fosfructl<ms: C~nnp.le,t~d iY~pll'catlq.ns wlth. u1~pr9p,dnte .tee slinll .be slibmlH~d t,q :\hp· Offfo.e qf Lnnd -Vse n1,cl ,$tr~.feitl9 

P,'h~m,hJg at lenst M ,dnys prio1· to th.e regul11rl)i, s"h¢tl'llled. l.>lannh.1g Con.,missfou ntecth~g. Appllcatk}l1s \i1J1s.t bo c6h1plfll\1 h\ 
, all r~upe).).t~ with 1n1p)?ortli~~ doctrn1e11ts suo.h ns s~t.e phm1 prop~rty survey et~, PJf\nnhw ,&taff ,v.rtl schedqle. lh,¢ ap,pl,io~.1fo11 for 

·cons1de1·ntio1) by the Pln1mlng C.omml.sslon h1 ac,oo.l'dancii whh. tho uttn.ob.e{J soliedlile, lncomple,le,.11ppltcatlons. 'i\Ml ~~h1y· the 
.revlew pro.cess, • ' 

A.rm.lilliW.t.i.ttl.fillfilLl2!'i l'\ t ',,),rl1~1W)'. 

'N,ame. James Poppas, Pl'esident ... F11sco, Shaffer & Pappas, Inc, 

Add'ress 5. 5.0 East.Nil)'e: Mlle. Rd·, 

City Feri1d~le; --
.$t~h~ rvlichlga11: . 

'ZIP,to.de, 48'220 
I 

Tele~htfne, IMaln: (248}-543~41 oo· I teu: I Fax: (24.8}•543-414l 

E."Mall jpapp~s@fspflrqh,cor.i.1 . I 

" 

'.Proj~ct and ~ll'opettY 1nforrua,tio.n 

Name of P1·op()sed Pe'velopn1etitr Lighthotise Ca'!nmrn Master Plqn 

T,he ~,lbject property·is locafion at. 46156 Woodwo1·ci 'Mc, 'On the N /: S' 1 g I ·w ·side of ·Woo.dwat·d Ave. 
·bo.t\veen Cottllgo St. and.....,P~a=l'l~c"""P=la~ce ____ ,, ' 

The.pi•op:ei't~1.is zoiied: c .. o. ResidMttal Office, .R.~3',Mnltif)le .. .foii11Iy.bwellf11g •& 
.'ls~,1 b11~ F~(11fly.DwelHn~ · . . 

'.P11opo1,;ed Zoning Disb:ict; :Ex~sting c .. o & :R .. ~ M11ltipte .. forn1ly b.weflhlg 'Zonliig Parcels•. to,Re~Zb11e to 
c .. 1, Existin~ R .. l Zcming ·P.nrconn~·Rezohe f6 c .. o . 

lt is p.1'0.p9se<.l fhat tl1~ proper,tr·,.Yil,l be nsetl. 1\s: Contilrne.ch1se of exlstb1g biri'ldings·as Offic~ and . 
·i ;Fnm.lly Housing OppoL'tunity Centel', The Eoo110mic Oppol'nniity Centel' fll1d Social Superm~11'ket\vlll be 
:' Added 10 the ·cam11.~ ' 



Tli~ ~t1bjectJ)l'ope~'ty 'is regally d.esc.1;i.bed fis fo~lb,vs (include sidwell i1mnbe1!s): . 14<33-ISI"◊)-~; . 
,14,33, I s\-007; J ~~.3.··1?2-001 ,.\ 4-33-l'S2-QO~,.l4•~3-l 5.2-003, I 4-3?• l 52-004, 14-33.-.15~~00~, I 4•3,3•1.$2•0Q~114-3.3- I $2.~P0? 1 l4•J·~~I 52•0081 

Hovey. St:. Right -6fnW.UY1 't,6 be. :vucnted betweou C'otfo~e:st, ·rind Prirk.l?lnoo, 

'Pi'ouerty, OWne·r lrt'fo'rtnal:lott 
' ~ 

__ ___. -· Name Lighth:6·i,se 
Ad.dress. 161~6-Wo9dwij~;d Ave, 

'<:;lfy )')ontiiw 

St.a~e Mldbigun. ' 

·Z(P Code 4$$42, 

Tel~pMne Main: (24.8)' 920-6006 j Celli (24'$)'330·10'.70 1 Fal<l 

E-Mail todd@.lightho\lSet)'u,o:rg_ 
' 

Al·0 you 'ti1e. :X -Owi:i.e1· __ __,,Agent/rep, of the owner ___ Ot11er -------~_....... 

The p'.l.'opos.ed v•;itn he mi~'d f.o.t the following· pnrpt'!s~ (p.rq:yid.e as .ni,1ch det~il as possible. lV.itb 
t>bQt!:l'gr.{¼pb~~ ~ltet~he.s, s,it.e plriiw, .wtftten doc.m\t~Uts., etq;). · . . ' 

C011tim1ed use .of existing. buflding ·as an Qfflce and T<'an:iily Housing Qpportt1nity Center, The Eoo110111id 1 

op·podi.11:ifty .Ce11t!:ii' ~n;d. Socfol S\1.1:ie11nai·k~'t will b:e ~l'dded. 

I t 

St~te· .the. reason f1fr thl:! l.()ning,, Mnp Ainenclrnent, pn1•.tict\lai11Y, the m~t'11uer hi \vhi.ch the City 
' . ' ' ~ wm be11.efi.t \.f the ·a,l\H},nd lll~l)t '1$ flPPl'QV:e.tl ni1d )Yhy Sll ~b ,CliaJt_ge wm no't pe ·d¢tl'i1net1tnl to t:nf;)• 

~,1b,lfo welfin:e,1n)id/ol' t.h,e p1•ope1•~-y.tigh.t~ .of ~'.ll'h~r )?Eil'~.lm~ 1.o·~MM lu the vlc\mty of'tJ1e s.lti;i. 

Lightbous~ hnS' owned & ope1'afocl the· existing offloes• & housing ;w.ith· servi0es i1se &· has 'heen 
esh\bl'lsh~ci for o.vet 2d yeuts at thfs loob:tion, the,pi·oposal Js 11)·eaht to co11s·olillnte tl\e' .c\1ii'ent 
o.ampus while lri1pi:civ ii1g. th4 existing h.Q(l's.h:1g. and ·.sel'Vl.ces, This. wHI hot ~ig}1iffo-atitly chal}!,~e t1~~ of. 
this vn'.iperty ar1d will j~bt be detrih1.~1)tµl to:th~ p11bllc.. Se~ att~c;t-ied ¢~11~p11s Master .Plan. 

Stal<' (!/'Mh1hls1111 
co1mw,,ro<drl('11// 

,. 

'Sign of Applicant 
' ' 

011 thls_d11,11·il( ' ;.J,!):,, )I)_____, b,j/ipt, /111' µ~1w1>nal/.11 (IJ)/11'(/l'~d 1/rf 11hr1\le.~1q111i•tlp111:s?11, wlio h,'.illg ,l,11/y ,1'11'\ll'II, fl,l(MI hr/she lurf /'<:(I(/, 

1lii!J1\1:~gril11g r1p11//r:q//h11,.l,iy1!/t11/l!eN/>Jl/\1il, '(111d !mow //u•·c111111111/s 1hc1·fnt: 11.111/. //1011/l¢ ~11111,11 /1f lrtll/ 1i('lt'lslhw11111•11.k11i1w/1•dge, <we.op/ 11, /P (hc,111r1/lq,1·,t 
(h~re/Jl',1'//1/l'd /(l '"' 11/1<>11, /l,(/i>)•111r1tf1.10.111Jd'/w/1~1'11ml ,MI/❖' lo 1/w11,, 1>11@11w /((lh/lwhdh11•11s It In /1e 1r111•, 

N111111~• P11i>//u, 011kla111I c~11t1W', 1\·IIC'lirgC1/I 
· M11 C<1111111/s,v/011 Bsµ/rc!.1':__ ·,, 



~EXISJINGZONIMG~ 
X.-3:MUru-F.AMJO" DwauNG 

+--EX15JINGIOIIIIIG-

lU 
::, 

z 
"' >-
<~ 
o.< 
lr.> 

<I:~ 
3:C?. 
0~ 

0 
0 
3: 

C-O !ESIDENllAI. OFFICE (!1JSlNS5J 

EXISJlNG-2-S[ORY" 
OfACE{lH'SUTUllOKAl. ~ING

_____,/ 

:30.00IJ G.<J'.10TAL (15.000 G.<J'. EA. FU<.J 
lSTR.COl:::ECOft,IO,t,..ilCCJ'l'Or.rm,un'c:&frat. T&l>.MTOfflCE 
:2TJOR001tIJGH'PID\JSEOffi~ 

SITE DATA- SOCIALSUPERMARKET/ 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY CENTER 

ZQN!!!li 
cam><~ 

= = 
C-On:mt~CR1C%[1~ 

WMllllVU:TNoUll'" 

C-lJ.DOL~~ 
~~ll!lCMG 

~ .u:ca~tn..DCS'.LOtt 

1'107'tn1D(tl(QllmMC;H0Yrl'V...c:a:rm~ ~~c:sf.0~A.CUS 

-0:\ffiPIN('; FQOJ?RIHI 
txtm)(.C;0fff~01W.:lmtDJkt;. ~!OCOcaL. 

rJPrQ!RllOO.o.TlIICfIHAmT 

= 
tOTCOYfRAGf 

A!LO><Ul!S 

""'''"" ~;:r nnc:..aas,J -

= U:c:1Ullll)-.f:CON'O.M1C:Ol'1'01ltDiIIYCDmr 

.strll~-.lO~ 
fs,.18.W,::l.OEFM/l.TlY.a«f:J~ 
oma-s::xJs:t. 
[~15.1".C::Cs.F~ 
CDlle--'DG!lJ'_ 

--~ 
="'-"'='-

)(/A 

== 

.,..,,.= 
=.a:r 

l5..aXlG~-~~RD01l] 
EXISIINGIO:HnlG-

,t,------ R-3 .MUUPlEFAMll.Y--+ 

"'""'"'~ 
$1.!J"OJU.lm'..;:i-,-"C:V. 
tJ7ACf./50U.f-] 
WAm!OUSl-%..ioo-11. 
{ISP~r'..JICJ~.J'. 
W.uo!OURomas-ao.!L 
rl26Cfr:r?2:S:E1 

TilT,<l. 

UQuo.m-oma 
.MA..l!(Ol'l'lc:E-7~$.1"
rt?~.:>O:J~-l 
~Vm-rllllr0S?"Al%A•7..5llll"
fl Sr'ACE/3CD.5,.f..J 
1!X.OITDma:4a.:tmU. 

10t,l 

~10U.LIEaUllm1'A1101G 

N:0\IICIIJJ~[J0D.tJ 

TUJTtDTlffi:ARFA 
l'llSJJl.OOlt-lO~O'lOl'tm:D ACIMLC)t(J 
nurn.ooir.-!C01ta/ll'fcor,,,:mvwrn-eona:rrEOJ'OSIDJ 
Rl:ST'R.OCl.-n)l.lJ,a'OffICf{?XlmJ(CJ 
W::Qt'P!JP91-f!Wffi'J QfflQ'l!:'lvt1H1l!?'QV'O'XJ'UIN@ 

rar,,.umu,""".ua 

IlmtPING:HFfGHT 
...uo"""" 
i::xu:m!G2:tn:l'ffOfflCO\ltu:IIJ(C. 
P't01'0mSO~D:Jiu.Jtl:l:rlV=a"UJ"ILIIUJ[l'(C: 

= 

7.,.,= 

=--= 
=•= 

1131'.JI.Cll 

=•= 
IS:11',.C,S 

== 
7.C.a'Ac:er ,..,.Aa:r 

UUP'A.t2S. 

~tt~
:::_,a_71.Qt;;.S.T.. 

::JIJ,.::z.a~ -== :!!U4D~-

Ult. 
et=rtJ,01t. 
{UlOttlJ:211:. 

~,um:t,Jl,Q)C!JCJf.l.l.llAU}l'010)..U"'1.101JOIJrCr~ 
M,Rl)OK"Jtlt.e,.;1,1.JUD)(!1'~ 

<I>-

11 ~I~ Q [85. i..O.W.) 

PAllX PLACE 

>"' ~;,, -
Q EXISIINGZONMG 
:C r-= . R-1 ONEFAMJIYOWruJ!,tG---> 

BJ' 

"-EXISlING-ZONIN:G---7' 
I-1 ONEFAMJL'rOWEJJNG-

<(-EQStlJ,{G-IONING-----+ 
2.-1 ONEFAMll.YOWRllNG 

~ 
OJ' 

..... 
lU 

rz:_.,. 
..... 3= 
.1170 

"'"' ,u-c 
>-::!, 
z 
,u 
u 

~l1glftnouse 
~ SeOro~<;~~!y~~!:~u~~STER \_LA~ 
NOim! CONFIRMAU.TOPO,SITEDATAANDLO!flL J---.-------i 

SITE DATA - HOUSING OPPORTUNID 
CENTER/FAMILY HOUSING 

_Illt!llll< 

""""'" ra.0103:ED" 
1•1 OWE-T.AMIC..TDWRUKt 

c.~m.gi~~~~~~ 
l:U.CitG~~.,r. 

~ -l.lOP'o:w> 
1tl.OOCSf.~tl~.A.C:U: 

:,s.,,s c;sr_ 01:.1-'1' .A.OE 

m1illlll!. 
MOOM.lJM. 11l5FJ 
no~ :zm::l'f 

WUPirffi FOPmll:fI 
.EXISin«, :F.U.W..TtlOtmMG/tlA.YClJIE ~-',214 G.U: 
norosm N.OustNG orrolC'tOOIT c::eaa :. u.1rrc.s..F. 
CR:IOJffiffiraJ:lttiG a; :QJl'ft!fCIPPI 
TOTA.l. ;::.U • .01G.,S.F.. 

[qr CQIDAGE 

AUOWJJIZ 
novmm 
fl,.,.,rfl$ff~1Z~ 

= 
,,,, 

~::lf,Jr,. 

lECIJIXED-~ fAM!l.T'HOllSIN.G/CLl,.Y'CA.&Ecaaa. 

FA.WO' }(OUSING-54 llSlDom 
05':...cE/:!-~ 
.0AYCUEC9lr:ER.-..at cuan:s 
f:::i2M77l"fB:Ole:fil ,uarow. 

1.117.A.CE: 

10Sl'A.CE: 

:Z,9ACe 

"IE12tn1ED-norosm HO\LSIMt;; onoillnUIT c::aatt/DIJmlCi 

HOUS»{t;011'OUUMJTl'CD0a-f'-ttro:ISltS :J:UJ>ACe 
{HOlJ$JJ,IG-01'1'0J'mDffl"Cfl,(Ji:Jr. J 3"f:J 1:51DB~,:SJ 
oma-1.71:s..s:,_ ,::sr..._ce 
~1:.1/.lXl=.Fl 
Cl.IN1C-5's..F. lSJ"ACe = snm:rr,LL J.f"Sl"A.ce 

GLQm'n::JTA.IEQ.UlllD U.sf".A.1:£ 

J"IOVID.ED-UU.DN'-CZKIIVtAM!lJ""mr:;J1)A;l'CU:C: '!JDSl'ACE. 

1'.IOVlDED-Gil.l.GE :1:n'A.t::e. 

~ 
~POSED HOU5IJilG 0:Pl'oxnn,nn-caaEJ:: Y6,Utl: 
JMe,I~~&.F.'UolllZ-i.Cl:.VAmSf 

Ffl'ffi?ffi fAMJTYHQJra&CfliIEI: 
TOT.A!...k'EDS 

Btl1t.DlNCzAltFA 
E.XISr!KG.fAM([?' HSGJDA'rCUE' 

.a= 
150:'ED! 

± 1,.!55 i:;.u. 

norosm HOUSINGOl701CrioorTCEMJDJDINl)rlG 

mst"R.O01:)'a".Q...0~,1.CONJ,ll'C10J:l 
.m::0PU>Fl00'l" 
lllI!IIBQJl!. 

TOr.&.UutLDDlG 

GVJrrln1'0TAl.!UlUIIKG..uEA.. 

mmPTNGlfSGHT 

±1S,1f7G.s.f 
:.a:787G..l:.f -= :=mG~.f 

.:t.""-U2TG.;S.F 

A.U.OW.Ql.E ~FT 
oa:sm,u,FA.MlO'kSGJ.OA.YCUECDllB. ~fr 
1'101'0.ss:t .KOUSD,lG Ol"l"OUUMIJY COOR :JS fL p.srorr._ 
J'101'0:Sa>JIOUSJMG.DOONS aNtEt. la 1T.. CJ..:sro.n: 
r1.o,~a,3-,cu.G.t.1AG!'. lll't. (J-sro,:r. 

= .f.U.ll(!DaDT-'-ICD~Mrnll'~~ca-~ 
UimQK'n(tc.aLUCOMIM~ 

LIGHTHOUSE 
CAMPUS MASTER PLAN 
PONTIAC, 

~~c 
40lITECIS~PU..~ 
~fll ~~ )<S~C: >ol,.JL:lr Ell. 
Tltir;•U>....i..c.JIU~~ 
~~-',-,.:;f~LI: __ .,.__ ... ~ .... -,. ...... _ ... 

MICHIGAI 

arr PREm..rIA11Or 
OCTOB6!~2l2 

P!Nl><>/GCOMMISSJOI 
D~Sl 7.:202: 

SHEErl OF 



#7 
RESOLUTION 



Finance 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable City Council President and City Council 

Sekar Bawa, Senior Accountant 

Mayor Tim Greimel, Khalfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor 

February 22, 2023 

Council Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed 
budget amendment for Budget Year 2022-2023. 
Increase the appropriation in the following GL accounts 
101-447-806.000 Engineering Services -$360,000, 
Decrease the appropriation in the following GL accounts 
101-447-702.000 Salaries & Wages-($200,000), 
101-447-715.000 FICA City Contribution-($15,300), 
101-447-718.500 -MERS Employer Contribution- ($10,000), 
101-447-716.000 - Medial Insurance - ($15,000) 

The DPW is operating without City Engineer and other supporting staff for many months in the 
current budget year. Hence, acting DPW director has been using Consultant Engineer to perform 
these engineering functions for DPW and other departments. As the outside Consultants are more 
expensive than the internal staff, savings in the pay and benefit cost is not enough to offset the cost 
of external consultants. This amendment addresses the funding shortfall in the Engineering 
Services account through the end of this fiscal year. 

This Budget amendment will reduce the General fund balance by $119,700. 

This budget amendment allocates the funds in the categories as given below: 

101-44 7-806.000 Engineering Services 
101-447-702.000 Salaries & Wages 
101-447-715.000 FICA City Contribution 
101-447-718.500 MERS Employer Contribution 
101-44 7-716. 000 - Medial Insurance 

Net Decrease in the General Fund Balance 

$360,000 
($200,000), 
($15,300), 
($10,000), 
($15,000) 

$119,700 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the city clerk to publish the notice 
oftlte budget amendment has been approved and one week after the publication of the notice. 



Council Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed budget amendment 
for Budget Year 2022-2023, 

Increase the appropriation in the following GL accounts 
101-447-806.000 Engineering Services -$360,000, 
Decrease the appropriation in the following GL accounts 
101-447-702.000 Salaries & Wages- ($200,000), 
101-447-715.000 FICA City Contribution- ($15,300), 
101-447-718.500-MERS Employer Contribution- ($10,000), 
101-447-716.000 - Medial Insurance - ($15,000) 

WHEREAS, the DPW is operating without City Engineer and other supporting staff for many 

months in the current budget year. Hence, acting DPW director has been using Consultant 

Engineer to perform these engineering functions for DPW and other departments. As the outside 

Consultants are more expensive than the internal staff, savings in the pay and benefit cost is not 

enough to offset the cost of external consultants; and, 

WHEREAS, this amendment addresses the funding shortfall in the Engineering Services account 
through the end of this fiscal year; and, 

WHEREAS, this budget amendment will decrease the fund balance in the Fund 101 - General Fund by 
$119,700; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish in 
a newspaper the proposed budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2022-23 as requested by the Administration as 
given below: 

This budget amendment allocates the funds in the categories as given below: 

101-44 7-806.000 Engineering Services 
101-447-702.000 Salaries & Wages 
101-447-715.000 FICA City Contribution 
101-447-718.500-MERS Employer Contribution 
101-447-716.000-Medial Insurance 

Net Decrease in the General Fund Balance 

2 

$360,000 
($200,000), 
($15,300), 
($10,000), 
($15,000) 

$119,700 



#8 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council Members 

Tim Greimel, Mayor 

DATE: February 28, 2023 

RE: DPW Department Head 

Allen Cooley, Ill has served as the Interim Director of the Department of Public Works since 
February 2022. Interim Director Cooley successfully oversaw an excellent winter service 
season and ensured that Pontiac roads were clear of snow in record times. Additionally, 
Interim Director Cooley oversaw similar service level increases over summer maintenance 
with park maintenance. In addition to these two specific examples, Interim Director Cooley 
has done a great job keeping the city's Department of Public Works running as smoothly as 
possible and that is why the administration has placed him forward for the permanent 
directorship. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

BE IT FURTHER 
RESOLVED, 

The City of Pontiac has been without a permanent director of DPW 
for over 12 months and; 

Mr. Allen Cooley, Ill has successfully filled that vacancy during this 
period and; 

Mr. Cooley has over two decades of experience in municipal DPW 
services and; 

Mr. Cooley has demonstrated that he is qualified to lead the 
department, 

The Pontiac City Council approves Mr. Allen Cooley, Ill to be the 
DPW Director for the City of Pontiac. 

That upon this appointment, Mr. Cooley's salary will be increased 
3% to $103,721.09. 



#9 
RESOLUTION 



Finance 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable City Council President and City Council 

Sekar Bawa, Senior Accountant 

Mayor Tim Greimel, Khalfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor 

February 22, 2023 

Council Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed 
budget amendment for Budget Year 2022-2023. 
Increase the appropriation in the following GL accounts 
101-201-818.000 Other Professional Services -$40,000, 
101-201-851.000 Services - Communication Telephone - $800, 
101-206-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor - $28,800, 
101-206-851.000 Services-Communication Telephone -$1,600 
Decrease the appropriation in the following GL accounts 
101-206-702.000 Salaries & Wages-($25,000), 
101-206-715.000 FICA City Contribution-($1,913), 
101-206-718.500-MERS Employer Contribution-($1,250), 
101-206-721.010-Healthcare Waiver- ($3,037) 

The positions of the Finance Director, Senior Accountant and Grant Accountant positions remain 
vacant for many months, hence, the Finance department is in dire need of a couple of temporary 
accounting staff to perform the critical accounting functions such as bank reconciliation, month 
end close, write adjusting journal entries etc. This amendment will pay the temporary staff for 
eight (8) weeks. This amendment also addresses the funding shortfall in the Telephone Services 
accounts. 

Further, consultants CVHT CP As are assisting the Finance staff to complete the FY 2022 audit. 
Budgeted appropriated in the account 101-202-818.000 Other Professional Service is not sufficient 
to pay for their services through February, 2023 since Forensic auditors were paid $47,894.29 from 
this account which was not budgeted. 

This Budget amendment will reduce the General fund balance by $40,000. 



This budget amendment allocates the funds in the categories as given below: 

101-201-818.000 Other Professional Services 
101-201-851.000 Services-Communication Telephone 
101-206-851.000 Services-Communication Telephone 
101-206-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 
101-206-702.000 Salaries & Wages 
101-206-715 .000 FICA City Contribution 
101-206-718.500 -MERS Employer Contribution 
101-206-721.010- Healthcare Waiver 

Net Decrease in the General Fund Balance 

$40,000 
$800 

$1,600 
$28,800 
($25,000) 
($1,913) 
($1,250) 
($3,037) 

$40,000 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the city clerk to publish the notice 
of the budget amendment has been approved and one week after tlte publication of the notice. 

2 



Council Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed budget amendment 
for Budget Year 2022-2023, 

Increase the appropriation in the following GL accounts 101-201-818.000 Other Professional 
Services -$40,000, 101-201-851.000 Services - Communication Telephone - $800, 101-206-
819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor - $28,800, 101-206-851.000 Services-Communication 
Telephone -$1,600 
Decrease the appropriation in the following GL accounts 101-206-702.000 Salaries & Wages 
-($25,000), 101-206-715.000 FICA City Contribution-($1,913), 101-206-718.500-MERS 
Employer Contribution- ($1,250), 101-206-721.010-Healthcare Waiver- ($3,037) 

WHEREAS, the positions of the Finance Director, Senior Accountant and Grant Accountant 

positions remain vacant for many months, hence, the Finance department is in dire need of a 

couple of temporary accounting staff to perform the critical accounting functions such as bank 

reconciliation, month end close, write adjusting journal entries etc.; and, 

WHEREAS, there is a shortfall the in the funding for telephone services: and, 

WHEREAS, there is a shortfall in the appropriation in the Professional Service account to pay the 
Consultants CVHT CPAs; and, 

WHEREAS, this budget amendment will decrease the fund balance in the Fund 101 - General Fund by 
$40,000; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish in 
a newspaper the proposed budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2022-23 as requested by the Administration as 
given below: 

This budget amendment allocates the funds in the categories as given below: 

101-201-818.000 Other Professional Services 
101-201-851.000 Services-Communication Telephone 
101-206-851.000 Services-Communication Telephone 
101-206-819.000 Contractual Temp/PT Labor 
101-206-702.000 Salaries & Wages 
101-206-715 .000 FICA City Contribution 
101-206-718.500-MERS Employer Contribution 
101-206-721.010 - Healthcare Waiver 

Net Decrease in the General Fund Balance 

3 

$40,000 
$800 

$1,600 
$28,800 
($25,000) 
($1,913) 
($1,250) 
($3,037) 

$40,000 



#10 
RESOLUTION 





#11 
RESOLUTION 





5102 (Rev. 01-19) 

GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING 

RACHAEL EUBANKS 
STATE TREASURER 

Bulletin 19 of 2022 
November 15, 2022 

Procedural Changes for 2023 

TO: Assessing Officers and County Equalization Directors 

FROM: Michigan State Tax Commission 

SUBJECT: Procedural Changes for the 2023 Assessment Year 

The purpose of this Bulletin is to provide information on statutory changes, procedural 
changes and reminders for the 2023 assessment year. Additional guidance may be issued 
later if any pending legislation is enacted by the end of the year. 

A. Inflation Rate Used in the 2023 Capped Value Formula 

The inflation rate, expressed as a multiplier, to be used in the 2023 Capped Value 
Formula is 1.05. 

The 2023 Capped Value Formula is as follows: 

2023 CAPPED VALUE = (2022 Taxable Value - LOSSES) X 1.05 + ADDITIONS 

The formula includes 1.05 because the inflation rate multiplier of 1.079 is higher than 
1.05. 

B. Federal Poverty Guidelines Used in the Determination of Poverty 
Exemptions for 2023 

Local governing bodies are required to adopt guidelines that set income levels for their 
poverty exemption guidelines and those income levels shall not be set lower by a city 
or township than the federal poverty guidelines updated annually by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. This means, for example, that the income 
level for a household of 3 persons shall not be set lower than $23,030 which is the 
amount shown on the following chart for a family of 3 persons. The income level for a 
family of 3 persons may be set higher than $23,030. Following are the federal poverty 
guidelines for use in setting poverty exemption guidelines for 2023 assessments: 

Size of Family Unit Povertv Guidelines 
1 
2 
3 

$13,590 
$18,310 
$23,030 

P.O. BOX 30471 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 
www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission • 517-335-3429 



Page 2 

Size of Family Unit Poverty Guidelines 
4 $27,750 
5 $32,470 
6 $37,190 
7 $41,910 
8 $46,630 
For each additional person $4,720 

Note: MCL 211.7u states that the poverty exemption guidelines established by the 
governing body of the local assessing unit shall also include an asset level test. An 
asset test means the amount of cash, fixed assets or other property that could be used, 
or converted to cash for use in the payment of property taxes. The asset test should 
calculate a maximum amount permitted and all other assets above that amount should 
be considered as available. Please see STC Bulletin 3 of 2021 for more information on 
poverty exemptions. 

Note: MCL 211.7u allows an affidavit (Treasury Form 4988) to be filed for all persons 
residing in the residence who were not required to file federal or state income tax 
returns in the current year or in the immediately preceding year. This includes the 
owner of the property who is filing for the exemption. 

C. Poverty Exemption Important Reminders 

It is important for assessors to review and understand the changes to the poverty 
exemption statute made by Public Act 253 of 2020 and to work with local officials and 
boards of review to ensure the necessary policies and guidelines are in place and are 
being followed. The governing body of the local unit may need to revise its policy and 
guidelines to make sure to comply with the law changes. 

The Board of Review shall approve or deny the request for the poverty exemption. The 
Board of Review is required to follow the policy and guidelines adopted by the local 
assessing unit in granting or denying a poverty exemption. The Board of Review is 
not permitted to deviate from the adopted policy and guidelines (this is a change 
to the law in PA 253 of 2020). 

Poverty exemption applications can be heard at the March, July, or December Board of 
Review. However, there can only be one Board of Review decision for a specific 
calendar year; a subsequent Board of Review cannot reconsider a decision already 
made that year. For example: if an application is denied at the March Board of Review, 
it may not be reheard by the July or December Board of Review during the same 
calendar year. 

Starting in 2021, to request a poverty exemption, a taxpayer must file: 

1. Form 5737 Application for MCL 211. 7u Poverty Exemption 
2. Form 5739 Affirmation of Ownership and Occupancy to Remain Exempt by 

Reason of Poverty 



Page 3 

3. All required additional documentation (such as federal/state income tax returns) 

Local units are still required to have adopted income guidelines and an asset test. 
These documents should be in writing and should be made available to taxpayers. 

If a taxpayer qualifies for the poverty exemption, the Board of Review can grant a 
100%, 50%, or 25% reduction in taxable value. There are no other percentage 
reductions permitted unless approval is granted to the local unit by the State Tax 
Commission for additional percentage reductions. The request must comply with the 
State Tax Commission Policy Regarding Requests for Percentage Reductions in 
Taxable Value for Poverty Exemptions and must be submitted using Form 5738. 

The forms and guidance related to the poverty exemption are available on the State 
Tax Commission's website under the Poverty Exemption Forms & Policy Related to PA 
253 of 2020 link. 

D. Sales Studies 

Equalization study dates are as follows for 2023 equalization: 

Two Year Study: April 1, two years prior through March 31, current year 
Single Year Study: October 1, preceding year through September 30, current year 

For 2022 studies for 2023 equalization the dates are as follows: 

Two Year Study: April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2022 
Single Year Study: October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022 

Note that the time period revisions apply to all equalization studies, that is: sales ratio 
studies, land value studies and economic condition factor studies for appraisals. Also 
note that the revised time period for two-year studies applies to all real property 
classifications. 

E. Property Classification 

The State Tax Commission reminds assessors that classification is to be determined 
annually and is based upon the current use of the property and not highest and best 
use of the property. The Commission is aware that some assessors are still classifying 
property according to highest and best use and/or are not classifying property on an 
annual basis. The Commission asks that all assessors take the necessary steps to 
ensure that all real and personal property is properly classified according to MCL 
211.34c. 

F. Public Act 660 of 2018, Property Assessing Reform 

Public Act 660 of defines the requirements for substantial compliance with the General 
Property Tax Act, provides timelines for audits and follow-up audits, and details a 



Page 4 

process for bringing a local unit into compliance if they remain non-compliant after a 
follow-up review. 

Information on Property Assessing Reform is available on the State Tax Commission's 
website at www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission under the Property Assessing 
Reform link. Any questions concerning Property Assessing Reform should be directed 
to Assessing ReformQuestions@michigan.gov. 

Local Unit Requirements 

The statute states the requirements that must be met by the local unit beginning in the 
2022 tax year. This includes having a published policy for when the assessor's office is 
accessible to taxpayers; information to taxpayers on how to request inspection or 
production of records in the assessor's office; and online access to information 
regarding its assessment services, including, but not limited to, parcel information, land 
value studies and documentation, and economic condition factors. The full list of 
requirements can be found in MCL 211.1 0g(1 ). 

State Tax Commission Guideline 2020-1 breaks down how the Commission will 
conduct the audit based on the requirements set by MCL 211.1 0g(1 ). Guideline 2020-1 
separates the statutory requirements into deficiencies (i.e. failure to have what is 
required by MCL 211.1 0g(1 )) that may result in a finding of noncompliance or that are 
technical. Assessors should review MCL 211.1 0g(1) and Guideline 2020-1 and work 
with local unit officials to ensure that they are able to meet the statutory requirements. 
Guideline 2020-1: Audit Procedures is available on the STC website. 

Required Training: Assessors and Support Staff 

PA 660 states that local units must ensure that support staff is sufficiently trained to 
respond to taxpayer inquiries. PA 660 also states that local units must require that 
assessors maintain their certification levels. Support staff is all non-certified staff that 
are involved in the development of the assessment roll, including field work, and any 
individual that may supply information from the assessment roll to the public. Certified 
staff members are required to meet annual continuing education requirements. 

The State Tax Commission adopted the following requirements for support staff training 
at the October 20, 2020 meeting: 

1. Certified Support Staff: Support staff who are certified will be required to complete 
their annual continuing education requirements to satisfy this audit requirement. 
Proof of completion and the required Form 5730 should be attached to the 
Assessor's Certification of the Assessment Roll and maintained with local unit 
records. 

2. Uncertified Support Staff: Beginning in 2022, uncertified support staff will be 
required to complete training at least once every two years on key updates to 
assessing to meet this audit requirement. Proof of completion and the required 



Page 5 

Form 5730 should be attached to the Assessor's Certification of the Assessment 
Roll and maintained with local unit records. 

Required Training: Board of Review members 

PA 660 states that local units must require that its board of review members receive 
board of review training and updates required and approved by the State Tax 
Commission. Checking to ensure that board of review members are trained is now 
required as part of the audit of the local unit starting in 2023. 

The State Tax Commission has determined that beginning in 2022, Board of Review 
members will be required to complete Board of Review training at least once every two 
years to meet this audit requirement. 

This training will be offered by the State Tax Commission, or by outside organizations 
with State Tax Commission approval and use of State Tax Commission approved 
materials. Proof of completion and the required Form 5731 should be attached to the 
Board of Review's Certification of the Assessment Roll and maintained with local unit 
records. Board of Review members will need to make sure they receive proof of 
completion and that it is provided to the local unit so it can be properly maintained and 
provided during the audit. 

G. Tax Tribunal Small Claims Division Hearings 

Assessors should carefully read all notices, orders and other correspondence sent by 
the Tax Tribunal. Assessors should pay special attention to the Notice of Hearing and 
ensure they are available at the date and time of the scheduled hearing. It is important 
to appear at the hearing and to timely file with the Tax Tribunal and serve a copy to the 
taxpayer of all evidence and documentation you wish to be considered at the hearing. 

Assessors representing their local unit in Tax Tribunal hearings need to submit 
evidence to support the value of the property under appeal. If the assessor is relying on 
the property record card as evidence of value, the property record card must be for the 
year(s) being appealed. The complete property record card, including all calculations 
should be provided; do not submit a property record card that states "calculations too 
long" and then fail to include the additional calculations. Also, it is important to submit 
the studies prepared that support the economic condition factor and land value on the 
record card. Assessors should also be able to explain at the Tax Tribunal hearing how 
the value shown on the property record card was calculated. More information 
regarding the Michigan Tax Tribunal, including Tribunal Rules, forms and instructions is 
available at www.michigan.gov/taxtribunal. 

Assessors are also reminded that any change in contact information, including a 
change in email address, must be submitted to the Tax Tribunal to ensure that all case 
notifications are received. 



Page 6 

H. Qualified Heavy Equipment Rental Personal Property Exemption 

Public Act 46 of 2022 was signed by the Governor on March 23, 2022. The Act creates 
MCL 211.9p which provides an exemption for qualified heavy equipment rental 
personal property beginning December 31, 2022. This exemption is not mandatory and 
may be claimed at the option of the qualified renter. Once qualified for the QHERPP 
exemption under MCL 211.9p, qualifying personal property will be exempt from ad 
valorem taxes and instead pay the specific tax as provided by Public Act 35 of 2022 
(MCL211.1121-211.1133). 

Qualified heavy equipment rental personal property (QHERPP) is defined in MCL 
211.9p(8)(f) as any construction, earthmoving, or industrial equipment that is mobile 
and rented to customers by a qualified renter, including attachments or other ancillary 
equipment for that equipment. Qualified heavy equipment rental personal property does 
not include handheld tools or equipment solely designed for industry-specific uses in oil 
and gas exploration, mining, or forestry. 

The exemption must be claimed annually with the assessor by February 20 (postmark 
is acceptable) by filing Form 5819 Qualified Heavy Equipment Rental Personal 
Property Exemption Claim and a statement approved by the State Tax Commission of 
all QHERPP located at and/or rented from the qualified renter business location. If the 
statement is not delivered to the assessor by February 20, a late application can be 
filed directly with the March Board of Review where the qualified renter business is 
located. 

Assessors are statutorily required to transmit the information contained in the statement 
and any other required parcel information to the Department of Treasury no later than 
April 1 each year. The information must be submitted electronically by emailing to 
Treas-QHERPP@michigan.gov 

More information is available in Bulletin 18 of 2022. 

I. 2023 Small Business Taxpayer Personal Property Tax Exemption 
Changes 

Public Act 150 of 2021 was signed by the Governor on December 23, 2021. The Act 
amends the Small Business Taxpayer Personal Property Tax Exemption (MCL 211.90) 
to increase the combined true cash value limit for "eligible personal property" in a local 
unit from $80,000 to $180,000 beginning in 2023. The exemption is required to be 
claimed with the local unit (city or township where the property is located) by February 
21, 2023 (postmark is acceptable) by submitting the completed Form 5076 Small 
Business Property Tax Exemption Claim Under MCL 211.90. Late filed forms may be 
filed directly with the 2023 March Board of Review prior to the closure of the March 
Board. 



Page 7 

Personal Property Valued Less Than $80,000 

To claim an exemption for personal property valued less than $80,000, Form 5076 
must be filed with the local unit (City or Township) where the personal property is 
located no later than February 21, 2023 (postmark is acceptable). Late filed forms may 
be filed directly with the local unit March Board of Review prior to the closure of the 
March Board of Review. Taxpayers must contact the local unit directly to determine the 
March Board of Review dates. 

Once the exemption is granted for personal property valued at less than $80,000, the 
taxpayer will continue to receive the exemption until they no longer qualify for the 
exemption. Once they no longer qualify, the taxpayer is required to file a rescission 
form and a personal property statement no later than February 20th of the year that the 
property is no longer eligible. Failure to file the rescission form will result in significant 
penalty and interest as prescribed in MCL 211.90. 

Personal Property Valued Greater than or Equal to $80,000 but Less than 
$180,000 

In order to claim an exemption for personal property valued at $80,000 or more but less 
than $180,000, Form 5076 along with Form 632 Personal Property Statement must be 
filed ANNUALLY with the local unit (City or Township) where the personal property is 
located no later than February 21, 2023 (postmark is acceptable). Late filed forms may 
be filed directly with the local unit March Board of Review prior to the closure of the 
March Board of Review. 

J. 2023 ESA Changes 

Public Acts 153 through 156 were signed by the Governor on December 23, 2021. 
These Acts amend the General Property Tax Act, the State Essential Services Act, and 
the Alternative State Essential Services Act. The Acts change the way that Eligible 
Manufacturing Personal Property (EMPP) exemptions are claimed and granted, and 
ESA statements are generated, beginning in 2023. 

For 2023 the process of claiming the EMPP exemption remains the same as it has 
been. ALL eligible claimants wishing to receive the EMPP exemption for 2023 will be 
required to file the Combined Document (Form 5278) with the assessor by February 21 
or with the March Board of Review prior to its adjournment. Taxpayers that do not 
timely file the Combined Document (Form 5278) will be ineligible to receive the 
EMPP exemption in 2023. Assessors will be required to send all information from the 
Combined Document (Form 5278) to the Department of Treasury via their CAMA 
software by April 1, as has been the requirement in the past. 

Beginning in 2024, eligible claimants that received the EMPP exemption in the previous 
year will carry the exemption over to the next year. No Combined Document (Form 
5278) or other personal property form will be necessary. Eligible Claimants wishing to 
claim the EMPP exemption on a parcel that did not receive the exemption in the 



Page 8 

previous year will need to file a Combined Document by deadline to do so. Taxpayers 
that no longer qualify for the exemption must file a Form 5277 by the deadline and the 
assessor remove the exemption from the parcel(s). Assessors must forward the Form 
5277 and 5278 information to the Department of Treasury via CAMA software no later 
than April 1 . 

K. EMPP and ESA Reminders 

In September and October, the ESA Section begins to send out Summary of Changes 
letters for all taxpayers that have certified their ESA Statement and paid ESA liability in 
full. Recognizing that manufacturers occasionally move personal property between 
facilities located in different jurisdictions, a copy of this letter is sent to every local unit 
in which a taxpayer has reported EMPP if a change on their ESA Statement has been 
made to any parcel located in any local unit. This is done to assist each assessor in 
identifying property that may have been moved in or out of their local unit. Assessors 
are advised that even if their local unit is not listed on the Summary of Changes letter, it 
may be prudent to note whether any changes made to a parcel reported in another 
local unit may affect a parcel located in their local unit. 

At times, taxpayers attempt to add a parcel to their ESA Statement that was not 
previously reported to the Department of Treasury. In these cases, the ESA Section will 
reach out to the assessor to ask if a Combined Document (Form 5278) was filed for the 
parcel and, if it was, request a copy of the Form. ESA Staff will also ask for a letter 
confirming that the EMPP exemption was claimed properly and that the failure to 
transmit the information to the Department of Treasury was not the fault of the 
taxpayer. These letters are not used to incriminate an assessor who made a mistake, 
but rather to add to Treasury files to document why a parcel was added to an ESA 
Statement after the statement was generated on May 1st. 

The ESA Section has received consent judgments entered by the Michigan Tax 
Tribunal for stipulated agreements between EMPP claimants and the local units in 
which they have personal property. It is extremely important that any stipulated 
agreement filed with the Michigan Tax Tribunal indicates that the personal property 
reported on the parcel meets the definition of "eligible manufacturing personal 
property," identifies which eligible manufacturing personal property qualifies for the 
exemption under MCL 211.9m and MCL 211.9n and directs the Department of 
Treasury to generate an ESA statement so that the taxpayer may pay ESA on the 
exempt personal property. Assessors are advised to contact the ESA Section for a list 
of previous dockets that contained the appropriate requirements. 

More information is available in the Assessors Guide to EMPP and ESA available 
online at www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions. 

Further information and guidance on the Eligible Manufacturing Personal Property 
(EMPP) Exemption, Special Acts and the Essential Services Assessment (ESA) is 
available at www.michigan.gov/ESA. Additional questions should be sent via email to 
ESAQuestions@michigan.gov. 



Page 9 

L. Omitted or Incorrectly Reported Property {MCL 211.154) 

Assessors are reminded that when submitting 154 petitions it is necessary to include 
complete copies of the property record cards for every year a change is being 
requested on the petition. For example, if a 154 petition requests a change for 2019 
and 2020 the property record card for 2019 and the property record card for 2020 
should be submitted. In addition, assessors must submit the calculations and 
documents needed to understand the reasons for the change and the amount of the 
requested change in the assessment and taxable values. Additionally, the 154 petition 
must contain an original signature. The Commission cannot accept electronic 
signatures or scanned signatures on petitions. 

For 154 petitions involving removal of personal property, staff may request verification 
that the assessor inspected the personal property location or otherwise confirmed that 
the personal property was disposed of and was not located in the local unit on the 
applicable tax day. Additionally, staff may inquire as to the extent of the assessor's 
communication with the taxpayer to confirm that personal property was reported in the 
new location. 

Questions can be directed to the staff at Treas-154petitions@michigan.gov. Additional 
information, including Bulletin 2 of 2018 and copies of the approved forms, are 
available online at www.michigan.gov/154petitions. 

M. Authority of July and December Boards of Review 

Assessors are reminded that the July and December Boards of Review may only act on 
matters described in MCL 211.53b or expressly permitted by other statutes. This 
includes qualified errors listed in MCL 211.53b(8), and appeals related to poverty 
exemptions, qualified agricultural property exemptions, and qualified forest property 
exemptions. 

In addition, other statutes, such as MCL 211.7b related to the disabled veteran's 
exemption, and MCL 211.7ss related to the eligible development property exemption, 
provide authority for the July and December Board of Review to take action. 

Assessors should carefully review the Board of Review Q&A and Bulletins 13 of 2022 
and 14 of 2022 to ensure their Boards of Review are acting within their statutory 
authorities. 

Assessors should not be requesting that the July or December Boards of Review take 
action outside of the limited authority provided in MCL 211.53b. 

Authority Over Principal Residence Exemptions 

Public Act 141 of 2022 was signed by the Governor on July 11, 2022. The Act 
amended Section 211.7cc of the General Property Tax Act, regarding the Principal 
Residence Exemption. PA 141 eliminated the July and December Board of Review 



Page 10 

appeal process in MCL 211.7cc(15) and 211.53b regarding claiming a principal 
residence exemption for which the exemption was not on the property for the current 
and previous three years. The July and December Board of Review have no 
authority to grant a PRE. Assessors are asked to ensure that the July and December 
Boards of Review does not take action related to PRE claims. 

N. 2023 State Tax Commission Updates Class 

At the August 23, 2022 State Tax Commission meeting, the recommendations of the 
Education and Certification Committee were approved. 

ALL certified assessing officers (MCAO, MAAO, MMAO) and ALL certified 
assessing technicians (MCAT) must take the 2023 STC Updates Class as part of 
their continuing education renewal requirements for the renewal cycle beginning 
November 1, 2022 and ending October 31, 2023. 

This class will be available both in-person at various locations across the state and 
online through the State Tax Commission Online Education Portal at https://coned.mi
stc.org. The dates and locations for the in-person classes will be posted to the State 
Tax Commission website. 

0. Online Education Portal and MiSUITE (CERTS) Login 

STC Online Education Portal 

The State Tax Commission offers a variety of online classes, available free of charge, 
that provide continuing education credit. The online classes can be accessed at 
https://coned.mi-stc.org. This site is only available to Michigan certified assessors and 
technicians. If you have an issue with your log in credentials, especially password 
resets, email State-Tax-Commission@michigan.gov. If you require a password reset, 
do not use the Forgotten Your Username or Password link on the page. Instead, 
send an email to the State Tax Commission and staff will manually reset your 
password. 

You must complete all requirements of the online course before you will receive your 
certificate of completion for the course. If a certificate is not emailed to you, then you 
likely did not complete one or more of the course requirements. The requirements that 
must be completed are listed at the top of each course and as you complete each one, 
they will be removed from the list. 

Once you have received your certificate, you are responsible for uploading it into the 
CERTS platform to receive the continuing education credit for the course. 

MiSUITE/CERTS 

Several updates were released in August to make MiSUITE a more user-friendly and 
secure platform. These updates include allowing users to request and receive an 



Page 11 

automated password reset link, simplified password requirements, and the ability to 
securely register a device. Additional security measures were also implemented, 
including password expirations. Passwords will now expire after 90 days. If your 
password is expired, you will automatically be redirected to an Update Password page 
upon attempting to log in. Simply create a new password, confirm that password, and 
click "update." 

You can access MiSUITE/CERTS by going to https://sso.misuite.app 

Assessors can check continuing education hours by logging into the CERTS system 
and checking your profile page. Total hours remaining to be completed are listed on 
the profile page in CERTS as well as the completed classes that have been properly 
logged into the system. 

Assessors are responsible for logging their own continuing education hours in CERTS. 
When logging credit, be sure to pick the correct course, date, location, and upload 
proof of attendance. 

If you have any questions, concerns, or need further assistance, please email Treas
MiSU ITEHelp@michigan .gov. 






	20230224150050613_0001
	20230224150050613_0002
	20230224150050613_0003



